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Definitions

B

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following

meanings:

RAFER/A - RIESBHEN -

“Acting in Concert Parties”

[—EITEAL]
“AGM”

[RERBFEARE]
“Articles of Association”
[AEIER ]

“associate(s)
[BEEEA
“Beijing OriginWater”

[EE KR

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[EExg
“Chairman”

[EFE ]

“Company”, “our Company” or
“Yunnan Water”

[ARAT) I Erk |

“connected person(s)”

[BEAL

“controlling shareholder(s)

MR R

THRREBUT RS :

Mr. Liu Xujun and Mr. Huang Yunjian, both executive Directors, and Mr. Wang
Yong, a member of the senior management of the Company

HTESNREREREERRLEURKR LA SREEBRELIERE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 13 June
2017, or any adjournment thereof

AARBRZB—LFRATZHETRRBFAEREEAMES
the articles of association of the Company
RARNAESERME

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB L mRAETZANEE

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (It REKRERHL A ERQF), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300070)

EREBKRERERDERAE - RPBERIHBRHOBERAT  EROERIESRKS
Fir £ (B2 4K355% - 300070)

the Board of Directors of the Company
RAANESS

the Chairman of the Board

BEEETRE

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (ErKIERERHER D F), a joint stock
limited liability company established in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

ERABEREROERAT » RPBERZHWBROERAR  EHREBIHAER LS
(R 4%35 - 6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB L mRBEFZANEE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEA EWRAETZANERR

EFERBREROBERDA
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Definitions

Bs

“Corporate Governance Code”

[EEER<FA
“Director(s)”

&%)

“Domestic Share(s)”

[RER ]
“ESG”
[ESG]

“ESG Guide”
[ESG#E5I ]

“Group” or “our Group”

Ex Sl
“H Share(s)”

THER )
“HKS”
(387
“HKFRS”

[ &8I BIRELER ]
“Hong Kong”
[&E ]

“IPO”

[BERARMEE]

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LR AT RN EEEETAREEERR
the director(s) of our Company
KARES

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share
capital of the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

UARBZBRIMEMENETRAREAHEREABEARE1.00 THEBHITER
environmental, social, and governance

BRI HERER

environmental, social and governance guide

BRIR - 2 RERIES

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
RRBRETEHMHE L E

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share
capital of the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EBXAER LA RTRATEREEARE1.00 THEBTEER
Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBEEERET

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting
Standard Board

BEMBREEL  SEEESTHTEARBESHENEZESSEMNRE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRITHE

the initial public offering of the Company’s Shares through the Stock Exchange in
May 2015

—E-HFERBAATRGEBHRFADERARRE

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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“Listing Date”

[EmEH]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#RAl]
“Model Code”

M Al

“PRC” or “China”

[E

“Prospectus”

[ERER ]

“Reporting Period”
[R5 ]

“RMB”

[AR®]

“SFO”

[ 3% RS iRA
“Share(s)”

[
“Shareholder(s)”

R3]

Definitions

B

27 May 2015, being the date on which the H Shares were listed and from which
dealings in the H Shares of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange

—Z-AFHAZTER  HRRERAEHKRFEREER RS
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B FraE s E AR Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

LR RIS FEN EH B ITAESETES RS WEESTE

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only,
excluding Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China and Taiwan

hEARSNE  ERFHEMES - FEEES - PEARLNDRPISITRERA

the prospectus of the Company dated 13 May 2015, issued in relation to the IPO
and listing of H Shares on the Stock Exchange

AR -AFAAT=REHERARBRERHRNEIF LHHNAXTBRE

2

the 12-month period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
H-E-R"EF-—A—HBEZE=F—RF+-A=+—-HLE+=-EAHH
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEEEEBARSE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
FBEBISE 571 B(RE R E KA

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, including the H Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

AATRRAFEREEARE1.00 THEER > BREHBRRAER
the holder(s) of the Share(s)
ROFEA

EFERBREROBERDA
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Definitions

Bs

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 32 |
“subsidiary(ies)
[~
“Supervisor(s)”

&%

“Supervisory Committee”

[BEEZEEE ]

“Undertaking Shareholders”

[ BAEGEIIIRER
“Y™mMCI”

[ErHREHE ]

“Yunnan Province Water”

[ERE k)
o
[%]

*

* EREE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BBMERZMBRARE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB L mRRAETZA R

supervisor(s) of the Company

RRBNES

the supervisory committee of the Company

RAANESBEES

namely YMCI, Yunnan Province Water and Beijing OriginWater

AERHIREE - EHEKBRIETEKE

Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Lid (EE & HHZRREE
B A PBR AT ) - a limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole
shareholder of Yunnan Province Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and

one of the Undertaking Shareholders

EHERTERREEEARAT  RABEKLNEREELAREREKFHIME—

BRR - BADFEBRRREED —BHERBRR

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (EE&KKEEZREGRE A

F]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC

EHEABERREBRLT  ROBEEMRLNEREELRH

per cent

Bt

For identification purposes only

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2016



The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights

ESEMAEMTINBRHE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+_B=1+—HLEE

2016 2015 Percentage

—E—AE —E-HF Change

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 Bkt

AR®FT ARBT T b))

Revenue Wz 2,865,890 1,558,394 83.9%

Gross profit EF 879,500 507,622 73.3%

Profit before income tax TSR a R 516,734 382,869 35.0%
EBITDA (Nete) BRAE - BIE - FER

12 58 B B 7 ) 946,346 498,202 90.0%

Profit for the year F A= F 414,266 317,443 30.5%

Return on shareholders’ equity (%)  BRERE£EHR=E (%) 5.72% 6.42% N/ATERA

Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREFRBRA(ARET) 0.325 0.270 20.4%

Note: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost-net,
income taxation, depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB388.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
approximately RMB285.9 million).

Basic earnings per share for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMBO0.325 (for the year ended 31 December 2015: approximately
RMBO0.270), the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of Shares of approximately
of 1,193,213,000 (2015: 1,058,932,000) in issue during the Reporting
Period.

The Board recommended the payment of the final dividend of RMBO.1
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (for the year
ended 31 December 2015: RMBO.1 per ordinary share). The Company
did not declare or pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The AGM will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 13 June 2017 at
conference room 1503, 15th Floor, Block A, He Cheng International,
1088 Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province,
the PRC. The proposed final dividend is subject to consideration and
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

BeE : BRFIE - BOR - TERBHENERRS
MBREABER —F8 - AEHE 7
EREEN 2 AFERA -

RAEABERR  AEELEZEAQ AL
BREREMENAOARKEISS1HE
TBEZZE—HAFE+-A=1+—HILEF
B HARM2859HET) °

BEHASREFBANBYARKE0.325
T(BEZZE-AF+TZA=Z1+—HL
FE:NAR®B0270T)  ZBRE
RENEBADEARAEERRREN
BANRHREHRESHTHMEFGIR
% £91,193,213,000 (= & — I F :
1,058,932,000 IR ) IR 7 HEEETH -

BEEEEBRBBE-ZE -~ F+=A
St-HLEFENREBRESREER
ARBOIT(BZE=ZE—HFE+=A
=T—HLEFE:  SREBRARYEO01
) BEZE-—RE+ZA=+—HL
FE > RDQBREIRE 2 AHE A HA
BEH4FRIRE -

BRRBAFAEENR-ZF-—LFRAT=
RESD)EFTREREFEEZERE
E2BA ™ /= #T &R 7P BE 1088 5% A BB R
AFE15121503 BB EHT - BERBR
ERAERRRBRRBFASERBBR
WRTIEE -

EFERBREROBERDA
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
TRARRE

?’f

As the chief executive officer of Yunnan Water, | am pleased to present
to all Shareholders the annual report of our Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

2016 was the first year of the “13" Five-year Plan”, and also the first
year of the development concepts “innovation, coordination, green
growth, opening up and sharing” consistently implemented by the
State. The Company has actively responded to the State’s policy of
green development, which is closely linked to two major business
segments of the Group, i.e. water and solid waste treatment. The
Group has well positioned itself as “municipal environmental protection
integrated services provider” to grasp the opportunities brought by
the nation-wide policy support to “PPP model” and the strategic
implementation of “One Belt, One Road” for continuing its business
expansion in the overseas and domestic markets and has put forward
effective internal management reforms, and hence, enhancing the
overall competitiveness of the Group.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Chief Executive Officer
TBAER
Yu Long F#E

-

EAERKBITHRAR  AARARBZ
URREEADNAEBE-Z-—"F+=
A=t—-BLAFEZHRSE -

TE-ARERMT=ZRIRENBERZ
FoIREREREEAF - BHE - &
& FR HAIEABRRESNER
ZE - ARFBEBEEEREZEERK
R URRIMBHRERSRBE INE
i ERHNAEEEKFEA E BE IR A%
ARG - E 2B BR X PPPER |
M=% —0% BB 228 JIEE
RBARANTSHEER  ARERABE
B EmMREARNSENEEBRFED
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BUSINESS REVIEW

2016 was the first complete financial year following our listing on the
Stock Exchange. Under the leadership of the Board and the support
from all our shareholders, the Company has stably improved and
streamlined the management standard and has been focusing on its
strategic plans and annual operational objectives, resulting in a rapid
growth in the operating revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2016, total revenue was approximately RMB2,865.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 83.9% as compared to
approximately RMB1,558.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. Profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
RMB414.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 30.5%
as compared to approximately RMB317.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Against the backdrop of the State’s promotion of ecological civilization
construction as a national strategy, with the establishment and
strengthening of the relevant systems and mechanisms, and the
increase of the State’s policy support, the environmental protection
industry in China has ushered into a new phase of development with
new and further opportunities and a broader platform. The Group
has gradually evolved from a raw water supply, tap water supply and
wastewater treatment service provider into an integrated municipal
environmental service provider covering a full spectrum of services
including raw water supply, tap water supply, wastewater treatment and
solid waste treatment sector including sludge disposal, disposal of food
waste, urban solid waste landfill and incineration power generation,
industrial hazardous waste treatment. We will continue to build up our
brand image as a leading integrated municipal environmental service
provider in the PRC while closely looking at any business opportunities
available in the overseas markets, such as those in the Southeast Asia.
During the Reporting Period, the water treatment capacity and the solid
waste treatment business capacity of the Group amounted to 2,634,000
tonnes per day and 1,350,000 tonnes per day, respectively.

BUSINESS EXPANSION

In 2016, the Group continued to accelerate expansion in the favourable
domestic and overseas markets such as Yunnan, Shandong, Fujian,
Jiangsu, Heilongjiang, Hunan and Xinjiang as well as other coastal
developed areas and major countries and regions of Southeast Asian,
such as Indonesia.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

ITHARERE

RERERE

CE-RERARDARBRAMLETERE
—AREBENTREE  TEEENEE
MEEBRRFUNZEZT » AQFE
BEREANCTE=EEKE T —BHET
REBBEFTSREELLEERE  BAEE
WELERBZERREER - BHE=-Z

—RNEFTZA=1t—HLEE  BlE
HWARM2859HEBET REBEEZZ
—HE+ZA=1T—HLEFEHNARYE
15584 BB TIERMN83.9% ; HE-F
—RNE+TZA=Z+-—HLEFENENY
A43BEBT BEZE=ZE—HF1+=A
=t+t—HLEFEYAREI7T4EETE
£#430.5% °

EAERNARZR LA BBERBBENE SR
T BEREESRESEML RN
B BMERZES LN EE R 2
2 PERREFRDRTHORRER
R -BAETEZHHERERERNF
B AKBEEEDSREFKME - BRKX
HERSKEERBUEEBTERARSD —
REANETRERBHES B2
FARRES - BREFEKEE - B Rk
F& - SRR B R B R IR (B 4RSI

RE - BENREE - HHEEARIE
BERRBRRE)  TXBRERVEES
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#)$£2,634,0000F B - EEEEEKE
HE#93% 1,350,000M8 8 -

E S HE)
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
THRARBRE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has continued to work closely
with the government enterprises to develop the government-corporate
cooperation model, striving to achieve mutual social and economic
benefit with and win-win situation with local government. The Group
has acquired 3 large-scale PPP projects (including black and odorous
water treatment, watercourse comprehensive treatment, etc.) in Yunnan
Province through tendering in 2016. Meanwhile, the Group continued
acquiring profitable assets and expand its market penetration in the
domestic and overseas markets, such as Southeast Asian countries,
in full steam in order to boost the business capacity and brand
recognition of the Group.

With an aim to strengthening its ties in the industry across the country
and exploring and expanding into the overseas markets, the Group
has tightly grasped the “One Belt, One Road” strategy implemented
by the State and strode towards “going global”. Leveraging on the
geographical advantage of Yunnan as a bridgehead to the southwest
of China, the Group will put more focus on the potential markets
in the Southeast Asia, using Thailand as an important market base
with an aim to expanding the Group’s business into the Southeast
Asian countries and other countries, for example Indonesia, Malaysia,
Singapore, and even Australia.

FINANCING

In 2016, the Group has continued to actively seek external financing
both domestically and overseas and implemented various innovative
investment and financing models with an aim to reducing financing
costs and optimizing financing structure. To this end, the Group
has expanded gradually from the traditional financing of bank-loan
financing to various debt financing instruments in the financing market
and achieved a synergy between the two models. During the Reporting
Period, the Group successfully issued the first asset-backed securities
(ABS) with water tariff collection rights of wastewater treatment and
water supply as the underlying assets in the PRC, and also issued
other financing instruments, such as private placement notes (PPN)
and corporate bond. In order to ensure that the continuous and robust
business expansion of the Group is supported by the capital required,
the Company has well managed its debt to assets ratio. The corporate
long-term credit rating of the Company has been adjusted from AA
to AA+ due to better market recognition on the capability and brand
image of the Company.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

RB|BEMR > AEBEFEEBTEER
el WEHERARRBLEEHEE
X HREMTBFERENHE - &
REFNEBELENSE  AEER=-F
—REEBRE WMETEMEAN=
RERPPPIEE (BIEERRKEBERT
BRERES) AR NEBRENSD
WEEENEE  EHERAURRE
DEREBIITEBEBAETESE &
AAREEEZGIERE D R RBERHE

AR AEPEEXERNBERARBESH
mE AEEENMBERERN—F—
B EE ASIELRE] BEERRE
ATBEAREEREZNMEES - K
SERENERREDEEMS  UE
BREETSEN  BALREEEE
REDERREMER - FIMENEERA
D FERAED - K BEEBRARIE o

&

RIZE—RF AEEHREBRBZSRE
RIS REE  WERSERFNE
ErmEst EERERERS &
tREZLE  AERSEBEREZ  ~&E
EREMmS LESRRITERHEESE
BErRmEERESEEEMETIA &
EMEZBNRREINIE - RBEEHR -
AEBEPEMIDBTEHBEUSKER
REKKEBELEREENEEXERE
ZABS): TERIEMEBMETR
(PPN) - ARBEHFEHMMET AN
17- AERAEENIFERBRELE
RESHEESIH  RATRIFES
TEEBER -ERNEQABENIRRE
FRE-—SBETERT > KAAREE
REBGEAZSHRCHAAREZAAL -
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

The Company has formulated a risk management control process
with a clear division of duties and responsibilities for all investment
projects of the Group. The Company has established a project
examination assessment committee formed by the employees from
project management, technology, legal and finance departments of
the Company who will conduct discussions and evaluations on the
projects.

The usual rules of conflict of interests, abstention and veto are
adopted in order to ensure that the decision-making process is fair and
efficient. Further, the Company has implemented regional centralized
management model in the PRC and established a total of 5 regional
management centers in Shandong area, Northeast area, Southwest
area, East China area and North China area. It is expected that the
project management standards will be further enhanced and the Group
will benefit from regional project integration.

The Company will spend further efforts on corporate management and
define the corporate culture and cohesion by further streamlining the
management, strengthening supervision over the financial, operating
and human resources aspects of the subsidiaries and further improving
the internal project approval procedures and staff training and
development.

BUSINESS RISK

During the Reporting Period, the Group has achieved an excellent
operating result. Nonetheless, the Group will continue to monitor and
assess its business risks. The Group’s business involves certain major
risks and uncertainties which are caused by the increase in cross-
border merger and acquisitions, the volatility of the foreign exchange
market, political instability of the overseas countries, keen competition
for talents in technology and research, the early stage of development
of PPP model and the uncertain and inadequate protection under the
legal system of certain overseas market.

Facing the increasing risks and the challenges ahead, the Company
will continue to assess and tighten its internal control procedures to
manage the risks posed to the business of the Group.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
THRARBRE

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As the Chinese government has introduced a series of policies for
environmental protection for its “13th Five-Year” plan, laws and
regulations relating to environmental protection in the State are becoming
increasingly stringent. The environmental protection industry is expected
to become one of the new yet important industries driving economic
development under the “new normal” era of the State. Driven by state
policies, it is expected that huge market opportunities and potential will
be brought for the future water supply services and solid waste treatment
and the level of development and scale and growth of the industries
will be set in high speed. Closely monitoring and aligning with State’s
national strategies and industry trends, the Group will actively develop
and adjust its strategic business plans and investment plans, and at the
same time continue to enhance its operational, technological and project
management standards to ensure that Group will maintain sustainable
development in the rapidly changing market environment.

Looking ahead, the Group will embark on “technological leadership”
and promote innovative development within the Group. The Group
plans to carry out specialized operation and centralized management for
projects of its solid waste treatment segment and invest a substantial
amount of resources in the research and development of technologies
relating to solid waste treatment, such as sludge carbonization and
waste gasification, with a view to reinforcing its core technologies
and equipment manufacturing, which the Board expects might also
serve as a new income stream for the Group to enhance its market
competitiveness and profitability. Meanwhile, the Group plans to fully
apply photovoltaic power generation and precision aeration technology
to further reduce energy consumption and operating cost and improve
investment returns for the Group.

The Group will strive to maintain and improve the investment decision-
making process and risk management systems and procedures. The
Group will also engage professional organizations to conduct project
evaluation with a view to increasing the success rate of tendering and
rate of return of the Group’s investments while managing various risks
to the highest possible extent. It is expected that reforms in human
resources management will be implemented and incentive schemes will
also be introduced to boost the morale of the staff.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

RRRE

HRPBEBAAE =5 58 H —
AIRRBR - EIRRFRABIERE
REERaRE RPRREXSHS
B[ #EE IR THEEEXENH
HESENEXZ— EEIXBERES
T FREA R SR ALK BR 75 A [E] 82 B8 1) B2 1
HEREANTEHENED » RI1TE
BRER EXARAREBA - BYE
EIRSEZNEHABHANTEEREB
2 AEEREBRERARERME
B EMRENS - AR TEMEEE
g RITREBEREERE  BRAKEH
EREZCNTHREPIFEERRE -

REARR » AEESFHREIEIMEL
EAREERNMBERRHEE - AEEG
SHHEREYEE S BNERETE
HEEMEPEE  YRAKXKEBERR
(] 88 BE 4 B2 32 (2005 e bk (L MBE SR (L ) 48
B R AT 2% - DUAN 38 H A O R AT M ER
BRE - EESRBETUTERALRE
BRA BT R BAEEDBFBA
FR - B AEBEFEZEEMRXR
RERBEBRRRMN - E-SEEER
HEMEERE  REAKENRKRED
i o

AEERE N EENTZRERRBRE
MEREERBRANEF - ARETFEE
FEERBETEBNML  UHEER
BAKRERENKRERDRE WG R -
BB X & & EARRERE - HHALE
ERERANDERERRE - AASIHE
REPE  BURESETIHNER -

Annual Report 2016



It has been a great year for the Group in 2016. In the upcoming year,
the Group will continue to utilize its advantages of in-depth knowledge
of and extensive experience in the environmental protection industry
and the extensive geographical coverage and scale of operations of
the Group in order to enhance the profitability and sustainability of
the Group, while, at the same time, develop and improve the Group’s
systems and procedures timelessly and persistently, which would not
only lead to higher efficiency but also greater risk averseness of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Following the smooth implementation of the “12th Five-Year Plan”, the
newly revised Environmental Protection Law of China ({7 A & Al
B3R5 1R %)) has achieved remarkable results. As the requirements
for environmental governance have been tightened and the enterprises
are now subject to a more stringent regulatory environment, the
consequential impact on the needs for better environmental governance
is positive and significant. All major environmental management
systems and important regulatory measures under the relevant law
have been effectively executed and complied with.

2016 marks the beginning for the “13th Five-Year Plan”. The “13th Five-
Year Plan” of the Chinese government has called for the comprehensive
improvement of eco-environmental quality as one of its main goals
and overall philosophy. The Chinese government has expanded the
overall layout of the development strategy from the “‘four-in-one” of
economic development, political development, cultural development
and social development into the “five-in-one” with the inclusion of
the development of ecological civilization for the first time. Centering
around this new objective, overall planning and deployment have been
carried out from different aspects of comprehensive environmental
management, ecological security mechanism and green environmental
protection industry development. On the one hand, the strengthening
support to environmental protection industry by way of favourable
government policies demonstrates that China is determined to continue
tightening pollution control and enhancing awareness of improvement
of the environment, and on the other hand, it also provides new and
further opportunities and a broader platform for the long-term and
sustainable development of the environmental protection industry.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Reporting Period, the environment protection industry in
China continued to develop favorably under the positive economic
outlook of China with the following major changes: (1) nowadays, the
implementation of environmental protection projects places more
emphasis on its goal of improving environmental quality than on
the production capacity and paramount importance is given to the
improvement of environmental corporate governance, whether in
terms of the government’s planning or the monitoring system; (2) the
investment in environment protection industry shifts from focusing on
the quantity of the outputs to the quality of the outputs and from the
demands of the industry to the changes in the supply and demand of
the industry; and (3) the robust development of environment protection
industry continuously drives the growth of segment market, such
as black and odorous water treatment, sponge city construction
and development, soil remediation technologies, carbon trading,
which have shown enormous business potential. It is expected that
the environmental protection industry will enter into a new phase of
digital upgrade with the introduction of new concepts, such as smart
environmental technology and digital environmental protection.

Driven by state policies, it is expected that huge market opportunities
and potential will be brought for the future water supply services and
solid waste treatment industries. Water supply, wastewater treatment
and solid waste treatment industries will benefit from the rapidly
accelerating urbanization in China and the policy support of the
Chinese government for the overall environmental protection industry.
The Board expects that the level of development and scale and growth
of the industries will be further expanded and investors in the capital
markets will also gradually pay more attention to the environmental
protection industry.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

As the Chinese government has introduced a series of policies for
environmental protection for its “13th Five-Year” plan, laws and
regulations relating to environmental protection in China are becoming
increasingly stringent. The environmental protection industry is
expected to become one of the new yet important industries driving
economic development under the “new normal” era of China. In 2017,
the Group will continue to adhere to its business strategy of becoming
a leading municipal environmental protection integrated services
provider in China, with an aim to creating environmentally-friendly cities
across China. Closely monitoring and aligning with China’s national
strategies and industry trends, the Group will actively develop and
adjust its strategic business plans and investment plans, and at the
same time continue to enhance its operational, technological and project
management standards to ensure that Group will maintain sustainable
development in the rapidly changing market environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Looking ahead, the Group will embark on “technological leadership”
and promote innovative development within the Group. The Group
plans to carry out specialized operation and centralized management
for projects of its solid waste segment and invest a substantial
amount of resources in the research and development of technologies
relating to solid waste treatment, such as sludge carbonization and
waste gasification, with a view to reinforcing its core technologies
and equipment manufacturing, which the Board expects might also
serve as a new income stream for the Group to enhance its market
competitiveness and profitability. Meanwhile, the Group plans to fully
apply photovoltaic power generation and precision aeration technology
to further reduce energy consumption and operating cost and improve
investment returns for the Group.

In terms of financing, the Group will continue to actively seek external
financing both domestically and overseas in 2017. Domestically,
the Group plans to diversify and expand its capital sources through
the issuances of various financial products, such as asset-backed
securities (ABS) and fixed asset loans, in order to implement the
Group’s construction and production plans and expand the Group’s
production scale, and thereby creating a virtuous business cycle
between financing and development. As for overseas financing, the
Group plans to utilize Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Yunnan Water (HK)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
its main financing platform by way of a combination of various means,
such as issuance of debt securities in the offshore bond market, bank
loans, etc., in order to support the Group’s investment projects in the
overseas market.

To achieve sustainable development, the development strategy of
the Group will continue to focus on its business operation in Yunnan
Province, and at the same time the Group will continue to seek
investment opportunities to expand its business to other favourable
regions of China, particularly in the southeastern coastal areas,
northern China, northwest and southwest regions. The Group will also
closely monitor certain overseas emerging markets such as Southeast
Asia, Australia and other overseas countries. The Group will capture
opportunities in the environmental protection industry and combine
its practical experience in the PPP model to acquire suitable projects
which are complementary to its existing business in order to further
increase its market share. The Group will continue to enhance its
operational, technological and project management standards to
further improve operational efficiency.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the
municipal wastewater treatment and water supply industries in China.
The Group mainly adopts the BOT, BOO, TOT, TOO, BT, EPC and O&M
project models to provide customized and integrated turnkey solutions
for water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment as
well as system integration services of core technologies to customers.
The Group’s businesses are carried out in China and the Southeast
Asian countries, the Group’s principal businesses comprise five major
segments, namely, wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste
treatment, construction and sales of equipment, and others.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s relevant water projects had
the total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,634,000 tonnes,
representing an increase of approximately 39.0% as compared
to the total daily treatment capacity of 1,895,000 tonnes as at 31
December 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s relevant solid
waste treatment projects had the total annual solid waste treatment
capacity of approximately 1,350,000 tonnes, representing an increase
of approximately 92.0% as compared to the total annual capacity of
703,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2015.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 67 concession
wastewater treatment projects under construction and in operation,
including 5 BOO projects, 48 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects and
12 TOT projects, with total daily wastewater treatment capacity of
approximately 1,379,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 10 BOT
projects and 5 TOT projects year-on-year, and an increase in total
daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 355,000 tonnes
compared with the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a
growth rate of approximately 34.7%.

As at 31 December 2016, concession projects which commenced
commercial operation had a total daily wastewater treatment capacity
of approximately 1,124,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 2
BOO projects, 8 BOT projects and 4 TOT projects year-on-year
which commenced commercial operation, and an increase in total
daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 355,000
tonnes compared with the year ended 31 December 2015. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective wastewater treatment
utilization rate was approximately 71.7%, and the average unit charge
of wastewater treatment was approximately RMB1.17 per tonne.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

As at 31 December 2016, 9 concession projects had not commenced
commercial operation with a total daily wastewater treatment capacity
of approximately 255,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 2 BOT
projects and 1 TOT project year-on-year and an increase in total
daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 85,000 tonnes
compared with 31 December 2015. During the Reporting Period, 2
BOO projects had commenced commercial operation with a total daily
capacity of 85,000 tonnes.

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 31 concession water
supply projects under construction or in operation, including 14 BOO
projects, 9 BOT projects and 8 TOT projects, with total daily capacity
of approximately 1,016,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 2 BOT
projects and 6 TOT projects year-on-year, and an increase in total daily
capacity of approximately 370,000 tonnes compared with the year
ended 31 December 2015, representing a growth rate of approximately
57.3%.

As at 31 December 2016, concession projects which commenced
commercial operation had a total daily capacity of approximately
675,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 1 BOO project and 6
TOT projects which commenced commercial operation year-on-
year and an increase in total daily capacity of approximately 310,000
tonnes compared with the year ended 31 December 2015. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s effective water supply utilization rate
was approximately 70.1%, and the average unit charge of water supply
was approximately RMB2.56 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2016, 11 concession projects had not commenced
commercial operation with a total daily capacity of approximately
341,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 2 BOT projects year-on-
year and an increase in total daily capacity of approximately 100,000
tonnes. During the Reporting Period, 1 BOO project had commenced
commercial operation with a total daily capacity of 40,000 tonnes.

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 7 solid waste treatment
projects with a total annual treatment capacity of 985,000 tonnes, of
which 6 of them with an annual treatment capacity of 729,000 tonnes
had commenced commercial operation and 1 of them with an annual
treatment capacity of 256,000 tonnes was pending for operation. As
compared to 31 December 2015, 3 additional solid waste treatment
projects commenced operation and the total annual treatment capacity
increased by 428,000 tonnes. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
effective solid waste treatment utilization rate was approximately
89.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises
BT projects, EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had a total of 11 BT projects, which were either under
construction and/or completed, among which income of 9 BT projects
were recognised during the Reporting Period, representing an addition
of 2 BT projects under construction as compared with 31 December
2015.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 7 EPC projects,
representing an addition of 2 EPC projects as compared with 31
December 2015.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of
equipment necessary for wastewater treatment, water supply and solid
waste treatment facilities. The major category of water equipment in
the Group’s production is membrane products. All of the membrane
products are produced by the own plant of the Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects
for wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment
facilities owned by third parties, as well as provision of technical
and consultancy services in relation to environmental protection. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group had 27 O&M projects, including
2 solid waste treatment projects with annual treatment capacity of
approximately 365,000 tonnes, 1 water supply project with daily
capacity of approximately 5,000 tonnes and 24 wastewater treatment
projects of daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately
234,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 1 solid waste treatment
O&M project, and an increase in the total daily treatment capacity of
approximately 14,000 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB2,865.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 83.9% compared with the year ended 31 December
2015. During the Reporting Period, the Group realized a net profit
of approximately RMB414.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 30.5% compared with the year ended 31 December
2015. Profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company
was approximately RMB388.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 35.7% as compared with 31 December 2015. Earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
RMBO0.325.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB1,558.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB2,865.9 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of approximately 83.9%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from
wastewater treatment increased by approximately 49.6% from
approximately RMB420.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to approximately RMB628.4 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from water supply increased by approximately 40.7% from
approximately RMB454.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to approximately RMB639.4 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from solid waste treatment tremendously increased from
RMB8.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB425.3 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from construction
and sales of equipment increased by approximately 85.9% from
approximately RMB597.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
to approximately RMB1,109.6 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue
from other business slightly decreased by approximately 19.6% from
approximately RMB78.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
to approximately RMB63.2 million for the Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was
mainly attributable to (i) the increase in the unit price of wastewater
treatment charged by certain wastewater treatment plants; and (ii) the
increase in construction revenue and finance income generated by
certain wastewater treatment projects under construction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The increase in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in construction revenue generated from
certain water supply projects under construction; and (ii) the BOT
water supply projects acquired in 2016 which realized operating and
construction revenue during the Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was
mainly attributable to (i) certain solid waste treatment projects under
commercial operation acquired at the end of 2015 which realized a
full-year revenue during the Reporting Period; (ii) certain solid waste
treatment projects under commercial operation newly acquired in 2016;
and (iii) the construction revenue generated by solid waste treatment
projects under construction.

The increase in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment
segment was mainly attributable to (i) business expansion of EPC and
sales of equipment in wastewater treatment, water supply watershed
management and solid waste treatment industries; and (ii) the
construction and finance income of 10 BT projects under construction
including those newly acquired during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB1,986.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 89.0%
as compared with approximately RMB1,050.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. The increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in
construction costs of various projects under continuous construction; (ii)
the acquisitions of certain operating projects in solid waste treatment
and water supply industries in the Reporting Period, resulting in an
increase in operating costs; (iii) certain projects acquired at the end of
2015 achieved full-year operation in 2016; and (iv) an increase in scale
of EPC and sales of equipment.

Gross Profit Margin

For the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 30.7%, representing a slight decrease as compared
with approximately 32.6% for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
decrease was primarily due to (i) the weighted average operating margin
of the newly acquired solid waste treatment industry is slightly behind
the waste water treatment and the construction and sales of equipment
segments due to a relatively high depreciation and amortization cost;
and (ii) certain water supply projects which newly operated or acquired
recorded a lower gross profit margin due to a lower initial unit price.
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Other Income

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of
approximately RMB160.4 million in aggregate as compared with
approximately RMB97.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing an increase of approximately 64.3%. The increase in
other income during the Reporting Period was mainly attributable to
the refund of value-added tax (“VAT”). Pursuant to the preferential
VAT policies issued by the PRC State Administration of Taxation,
the wastewater and solid waste treatment businesses of the Group
were eligible for full exemption of VAT prior to 1 July 2015. However,
effective from 1 July 2015, the VAT policies were changed and the full
exemption of VAT was superseded by 70% refund of the net VAT paid.

Selling Expenses

For the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was
approximately RMB22.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 32.6% from approximately RMB17.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The increase was due to the increasing
scale of EPC and sales of equipment and the increase in selling
expenses from newly acquired businesses in 2016.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB149.8
million from approximately RMB181.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB331.0 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of approximately 82.7%. Increase in
administrative expenses was primarily due to (i) the expansion of the
Group’s business by acquisition of a number of subsidiaries, which
resulted in an increase in expenses such as employee benefit expenses
and legal and professional fees for the acquisitions; (i) the solid waste
projects acquired at the end of 2015 were under a full-year operation in
2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs — net

Net finance costs increased by RMB178.9 million from approximately
RMB41.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately RMB220.1 million for the Reporting Period, representing
an increase of almost four times that for the previous year. The increase
in net finance costs was primarily due to a number of additional bank
borrowings and the issuance of other debt securities to support the
Group’s business acquisition and operation.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting
Period was approximately 4.70% per annum, representing a decrease
compared with approximately 6.36% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2015 due to the diversified source of financing channel in
the Reporting Period.

Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity
method

Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method
increased by approximately RMB37.5 million from approximately
RMB4.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB42.4 million during the Reporting Period. The increase was mainly
due to the combined effect of the recognition of the negative goodwiill
arising from acquisition of the joint venture, Galaxy NewSpring Pte.
Ltd., and share of its financial results from its acquisition date to 31
December 2016.

Profit Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded profit before
income tax of approximately RMB516.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, representing an increase of approximately 34.9% as
compared with approximately RMB382.9 million recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by RMB37.1 million from approximately
RMB65.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately RMB102.5 million for the Reporting Period, representing
an increase of approximately 56.7%. The weighted average effective
tax rate was approximately 19.8% (2015: 17.1%). The increase is
caused by the change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in
respective countries or regions applying different corporate income tax
rates.
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Profit and Net Profit Margin for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the Reporting Period increased
by RMB96.9 million from approximately RMB317.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB414.3 million for the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 30.5%.
Net profit margin decreased from approximately 20.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 14.5% for the Reporting
Period.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements
increased by RMB937.9 million from approximately RMB1,953.3 million
as at 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB2,891.2 million as at
31 December 2016, representing an increase of approximately 48.0%.
Such increase was primarily due to (i) the wastewater concession
projects newly acquired in 2016; and (ii) the additional investments on
BOT and TOT projects under construction by the Group which led to an
increase in the outstanding receivables under the service concession
arrangements.

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group’s trade and other receivables and prepayments increased
by RMB2,245.8 million from approximately RMB1,970.3 million as
at 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB4,216.1 million as at 31
December 2016, representing an increase of approximately 114.0%.
Such increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in trade and other
receivables and prepayments from the projects acquired by the Group
during the Reporting Period; (ii) an expansion of EPC and sales of
equipment; and (jiii) an increase in deposits for proposed acquisition
projects.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s total cash balance of increased by RMB2,457.8 million
from approximately RMB1,672.1 million as at 31 December 2015
to approximately RMB4,129.9 million as at 31 December 2016
representing an increase of approximately 147.0%. Such increase was
primarily in line with the larger scale of the issuance of multiple financial
instruments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and Other Payables

The Group’s trade and other payables increased by RMB1,778.7
million from approximately RMB1,128.9 million as at 31 December
2015 to approximately RMB2,907.6 million as at 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of approximately 157.6%. Such increase
was primarily due to (i) the increase in trade and other payables for the
newly acquired projects; (ii) an increase in purchasing cost for sales
of equipment and the construction investment in concession and BT
projects; and (iii) the remaining consideration to be paid for the newly
acquired businesses.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB8,298.5 million (31 December 2015: approximately RMB3,064.3
million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unsecured borrowings of
approximately RMB6,468.7 million (31 December 2015: approximately
RMB2,250.9 million), and secured borrowings of approximately
RMB1,829.8 million (31 December 2015: approximately RMB813.4
million).

Perpetual capital instruments

On 29 December 2016, the Group issued unsecured perpetual capital
instruments with aggregated net proceeds of RMB2,000.0 million
to a financial institution in the PRC (2015: nil). The perpetual capital
instruments have no maturity, and the payments of distribution can
be deferred at the discretion of the Company. There was no profit
attributable to the holders of perpetual capital instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB688.5 million which were secured by the Group’s land use
rights, shares of a subsidiary and a joint venture (31 December 2015:
borrowings of approximately RMB153.9 million were secured by land
use rights and property, plant and equipment of the Group, non-
controlling interests and external parties). As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had borrowings of approximately RMB1,141.3 million (31
December 2015: approximately RMB659.5 million) which were secured
by right of charges from concession projects of tap water supply and
wastewater treatment and BT projects.

Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments increased by RMB2,872.4 million
from approximately RMB1,810.8 million as at 31 December 2015
to approximately RMB4,683.2 million as at 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of approximately 158.6%. Such increase
was primarily due to business expansion, the Group’s increased
investments in property, plant and equipment, BT and concession
projects and business combinations.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total
capital) increased from approximately 21.98% as at 31 December 2015
to approximately 36.52% as at 31 December 2016. The increase in
gearing ratio was mainly due to the increased scale of debt financing
during the Reporting Period.

The IPO of the Company and the Use of Proceeds from the IPO

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 27 May 2015. After completion of the IPO, the total number of
the Company’s H shares was 363,713,900 (including the H shares
converted from domestic shares on a one-for-one basis). The proceeds
from the IPO after deducting the relevant listing expenses were
approximately HK$1,739 million. The utilization of which is in line
with the information as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 13 May 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has utilized
proceeds of approximately HK$1,715 million, and unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$24 million.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 3,666 employees (31
December 2015: 2,005). For the year ended 31 December 2016, staff
cost was approximately RMB264.3 million (for the year ended 31
December 2015: RMB148.3 million). The Group will strive to ensure that
the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package
provided to employees also includes basic and floating salaries,
discretionary bonus and staff benefits. The Group also provides
external and internal training programs for its employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes causing
any material impact on its normal business operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
being settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of
the group entities. The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations
is managed primarily through operating and financing activities
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies. The group entities are
exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies other than their
functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars (“US$”),
Euro (“EUR”), and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) (together “Non-functional
Currencies”).

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the group entities within the Group
had more financial liabilities than financial assets denominated in Non-
functional Currencies. Fluctuations in exchange rates between the
functional currencies of respective group entities and Non-functional
Currencies in which the group entities conducts business may affect
the Groups financial position and results of operations. The Group
seeks to limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
and minimizing its net foreign currency position. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not have any derivative financial instrument to
hedge its foreign currency exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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Final Dividend

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.1 per share
(tax included) for the year ended 31 December 2016. The proposed
distribution of final dividend by the Company is subject to approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Upon approval, the final
dividend will be paid on or before 28 July 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

On 9 December 2016, the Company entered into a joint venture
agreement with Haining Municipal Water Investment Group
Co., Limited* (BE M KB IRE K E B R 2 A) in relation to the
establishment of Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection
Company Limited* (# JIL 8 E R R B R 22 §) as a joint venture
company in Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, with a total
investment amount of RMB1,100,000,000.

On 1 November 2016, Yunnan Water (HK) entered into a joint
venture agreement with Penglai Urban Construction Investment
Group Co., Ltd.* EHR MMM ER B EELEBEERLQF) in relation to
the establishment of Shandong Yunshui Xianjing Environmental
Protection Investment Company, Ltd.* (ILUEREK IR BRRRXREER
‘AH]) as a joint venture company in Penglai, Shandong Province,
the PRC, with a total investment amount of US$100,000,000.

On 24 October 2016, the Company (as purchaser) entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Yunnan Zhengxiao Cables
Co., Ltd.* (E /™ IE ¥ & & B [R 2 7) (as vendor) in relation to
the acquisition of 40% equity interest of Yunnan Zhengxiao
Environmental Protection Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ [E BB R IR
BAM AT at a consideration of RMB220,000,000.

On 28 July 2016, Yunnan Water (HK) (as purchaser) and the
Company (as purchaser’s guarantor) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mitsui & Co., Ltd in relation to the
acquisition of 50% interest in Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd. at a
consideration of US$100,000,000. On 26 October 2016, Yunnan
Water (HK) (as purchaser) and the Company (as purchaser’s
guarantor) entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Hyflux Asset Management Pte. Ltd. (as vendor) and Hyflux Ltd. (as
vendor’s guarantor) in relation to the acquisition of the remaining
50% interest in Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd. at a consideration of
US$136,500,000.
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— On 21 April 2016, the Company (as purchaser) entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Heilongjiang Chenergy Investment
Group Company Limited* (BRI REREEEERET 2 T)
and Heilongjiang Chenergy Hit High-Tech Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd* (BEIRER I ASRERAKIIZRERR A A (collectively, as
vendors) in relation to the acquisition of 75.51% equity interest
in Harbin Yun Shui Gong Da Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd* (BWHEEE KT KRRB KM B R 2 F]) (formerly known
as “Harbin Chenergy & Hit Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.*
(MHEEREIRXRERARMER D BER 2D F)") and its subsidiaries
at a consideration of RMB158,000,000. The acquisition was
completed on 4 August 2016.

— On 11 January 2016, the Company (as purchaser) entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Environmental Experts (China)
Development & Investment Company Limited (2 % & R (h )
R E B2 AR 2 7)) and Hong Kong Rich Investment Limited (&
B E B IR E B R A A (collectively, as vendors) in relation to the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Harbin Guo Huan Medical
Solid Waste Harmless Centralized Disposal Center Co., Ltd.”
(CREEREREREYESLETEEFLERAR)ata
consideration of RMB290,641,420. The acquisition was completed
on 2 June 2016.

— On 21 December 2015, Yunnan Water (HK) (as purchaser) entered
into an equity transfer agreement with Mr. Wang Zhi (as vendor),
Future International Group Co., Ltd. (“Future International”) and
Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited* (F& & 7k #(F /M)A
PR A 7]) in relation to the sale and purchase of 65% interest in
Future International at a consideration of RMB292,500,000. The
acquisition was completed on 8 January 2016.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investments and
acquisitions, please refer to the announcements published by the
Company on 9 December 2016, 1 November 2016, 24 October 2016,
28 July 2016, 26 October 2016, 21 April 2016, 11 January 2016 and 21
December 2015, respectively.
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Subsequent Events:

On 30 November 2015, Yunnan Metropolitan Construction
Investment Co., Ltd.* (EFE&BHERREEEHBRLAF) (‘YMCI?)
has pledged the 100% equity interests (the “Equity Pledge”)
in Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ &
BABEZEREHBR 2 T) in favour of a financial institution as
security for a loan of YMCI. On 23 March 2017, the Company was
informed that the Equity Pledge has been released.

On 26 October 2016, Yunnan Water (HK) entered into an equity
sale and purchase agreement with Hyflux Asset Management
Pte. Ltd. and Hyflux Ltd. to acquire the remaining 50% equity
interest in Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd. at the consideration of
US$136,500,000. The acquisition was completed on 15 March
2017.

On 25 January 2017, the Company and Yunnan Sidu Investment
Management Co., Ltd.( EFHTEREEEHBR A F) entered into a
joint venture agreement in relation to the establishment of Yunnan
Solid Waste Investment Co., Ltd.* (EREEREBRAF) as a
joint venture company in Yunnan Province, the PRC, with a total
investment amount of RMB500,000,000.

On 17 January 2017, the Shanghai Stock Exchange has officially
announced that it has no objection to the Company’s application
for the non-public issuance of the renewable corporate green
bonds with maximum principal of RMB1,800,000,000 to qualified
investors in the PRC.

On 5 January 2017, the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC has officially approved the public
issuance of the green bond at nominal value of not exceeding
RMB550,000,000 by the Company.

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent events, please refer to

the announcements published by the Company on 23 March 2017, 15

March 2017, 25 January 2017, 17 January 2017 and 5 January 2017,
respectively.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiao Jun (“Mr. Jiao”), aged 60, joined the Group as non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2014 and was appointed as the
acting Chairman of the Company and the acting chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 24 February 2017 until the appointment of
the new Chairman and the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Jiao obtained a bachelor’s degree in solid mechanics from Lanzhou
University in Lanzhou in January 1982, and a master’s degree in
earthquake engineering from Yunnan College of Engineering in Yunnan
in July 1987. Mr. Jiao obtained the qualification of senior engineer
in engineering management in February 1996. Mr. Jiao is mainly
responsible for formulating the Company’s business development
strategies and providing advice on audit and risk management. He has
extensive and professional working experience in environmental and
water works industry. Mr. Jiao has served as lecturers in Southwest
Forestry University and Yunnan Technology University. Mr. Jiao
held different positions in various departments of the Department
of Construction of Yunnan between 1988 and 2011, including clerk
for deputy director, clerk for director, deputy director, director of the
office of anti-earthquake command headquarters, head of the anti-
earthquake department and head of the financial planning department.
He has been the deputy general manager of YMCI since June 2011.
Mr. Jiao has been appointed as director of Yunnan Circular Economy
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Circular Economy”) (which was held by YMCI
and Yunnan Province Water) since December 2013 and was appointed
as chairman in July 2014. He has been appointed as executive director
of Kunming Future City Development Co., Ltd. since September 2014.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
EE ESENEREEAE

Mr. He Yuanping (“Mr. He”), aged 50, joined our Group in June
2011 as a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering from Nanjing University of Science
and Technology in Nanjing in July 1987. He also completed a master’s
degree in mechanical engineering in Beijing University of Science
and Technology in Beijing in February 1992 and obtained a master’s
degree in finance from the Victoria University of Wellington in New
Zealand in July 2000. He is mainly responsible for formulating the
Company’s business strategies and providing advice on audit and risk
management. He has more than ten years of management experience
in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry. Mr. He was
appointed as director, deputy general manager and chief financial
officer of Beijing OriginWater Science and Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (predecessor of Beijing OriginWater) from September 2005 to
June 2007. Mr. He was appointed as director, deputy general manager,
chief financial officer and secretary to the Board of Directors of Beijing
OriginWater since June 2007. He has been appointed as chairman
and director of a number of subsidiaries of Beijing OriginWater since
May 2011. Mr. He has been appointed as director of Wuhan Sanzhen
Industry Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed and traded its shares on
the Shanghai stock exchange, stock code: 600168) since November
2013. He has been appointed as an independent director of Telestone
Technology Corporation (a company listed on Nasdaq, stock code:
TSTC) since November 2011.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi (“Mr. Feng”), aged 41, joined our Group in June
2013 as non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Feng obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from the Central University of Finance
and Economics in Beijing in July 1997 and a master’s degree in
business administration from a joint university programme organized by
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and Tsinghua University in Beijing
in December 2005. He is mainly responsible for formulating corporate
and business strategies and providing advice on audit and risk
management. Mr. Feng has more than 15 years of senior management
experience in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry.
Mr. Feng has been appointed as director of Finergy Guangda (Tianjin)
Capital Partners (Limited Partnership) since May 2011. Mr. Feng has
been appointed as general manager and managing director of Yunnan
Finergy Tongda Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd. since March
2012. Mr. Feng has been appointed as a member of the investment
management committee of Yunnan Energy-saving Environmental
Protection Venture Capital Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) since
December 2012. Mr. Feng has been appointed as director of Shandong
Higer Information Technology Co., Limited (1L 3% 1= B 7 1% 15
BPR/AE]) (shares of which listed on the New Third Board, stock code:
834482) since August 2015.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE  ESREREEAER

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu”), aged 45, joined the Company in June 2011
as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University in Beijing in July 2013. Mr. Yu won the “Yunnan
Labour Medal” awarded by Yunnan Provincial Union Federation in 2012
and 2013 and the “Yunnan 2008-2012 town wastewater and household
waste treatment facilities construction advancement - personal award”
granted by the People’s Government of Yunnan Province. Mr. Yu is
mainly responsible for the overall operation and management, strategic
planning and business development of the Company. Mr. Yu has
more than 14 years of experience in environmental and water works
industry, market development, project management, investment capital
management, and risk control management. Mr. Yu has been appointed
as part-time professor of the Urban Construction and Management
School of Yunnan University and the Environmental Science and
Engineering School of Kunming University of Technology successively
since April 2012. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of water
works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and
August 2007. Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director
of Kardan Water Group Limited between August 2007 and July 2008.
Between July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy
general manager of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd. Between May
2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director
and the deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Mr. Yu has
been appointed as chairman or director of various subsidiaries of our
Company since January 2011.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu”), aged 44, joined our Group in June 2011 as
executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and was subsequently appointed as chief engineer in December of
the same year. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in water supply
and drainage engineering from Tongji University in Shanghai in July
1995. Later, he further obtained a master’s degree in environmental
engineering from Kunming University of Science & Technology in
Kunming in June 2009, and he currently is still pursuing research
studies for doctor of philosophy in environment engineering at Tongji
University in Shanghai. Mr. Liu was qualified as a senior engineer
specialized in water supply and drainage in September 2006 by the
Kunming Architecture Senior Engineer Certifying Committee (£ 88 ™

BEITRESHIREEFTEZ). He was also qualified as a professional
manager in June 2007 by the Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Yunnan Province of the PRC. Mr. Liu has become a member
of the International Water Association (IWA) (B B 7k #3) since January
2013. He subsequently qualified as a professorate senior engineer
specialized in water supply and drainage in November 2014 by
the Yunnan Professorate Senior Engineer Certifying Committee (£
MELESHRIREENFEZES). Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for the
overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Liu has more than 19 years of
technical experience in the water works industry, including 5 years of
senior management experience in water works enterprises. Mr. Liu
served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal Sewerage Co., Ltd., a
deputy director and later a director of World Bank project office between
July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked as a procurement specialist
for the World Bank Resident Mission from December 2007 to October
2009. He was appointed as chief engineer and deputy general of Yunnan
Province Water from January 2010 to June 2011 and has been appointed
as a director of Circular Economy since December 2013.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Huang Yunjian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 51, joined our Group in
December 2011 as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and was subsequently appointed as executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Huang
obtained a degree in environment engineering from Kunming University
of Science and Technology in Kunming in July 1988. He obtained a
certificate for senior research studies on modern economics in 2005
and a certificate for the “Western China Environmental Infrastructure
Technologies and Projects” course in December 2005. Mr. Huang
further obtained the qualification of a Chinese career manager in
June 2006 awarded by Chinese Career Manager Coalition. He is
mainly responsible for management, strategic planning and business
development of our Group. He has more than 17 years of experience
in operation management and senior management in water works
related companies. Mr. Huang was appointed as engineer and plant
manager of the 4th plant of Kunming Municipal Sewerage Co., Ltd.
from April 1998 to June 2005. Mr. Huang was appointed as the legal
representative, executive director and general manager of Kunming
Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd. between June 2005 and July 2008.
Mr. Huang was appointed as assistant to the general manager and
deputy general manager of Yunnan Province Water, our controlling
shareholder, between January 2010 and June 2011. Mr. Huang also
served as legal representative and director in a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. In addition, Mr. Huang was also appointed as a part-
time professor of Kunming University of Science and Technology
since January 2013. And Mr. Huang has been appointed as director
of Yunnan Fengyuan Water Co., Ltd. (which was held by YMCI) since
March 2014.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Dai Richeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 52, joined the Group in June
2016 as executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dai holds a master
degree in environmental engineering from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in Nanjing University of Science and Technology and
a doctoral degree in environmental engineering of the Department
of Environmental Engineering from Tsinghua University. Mr. Dai
has extensive experience for about 30 years in the water treatment
industry. He was an engineer at the Water Pollution Research Office
of the Quan Jun Environmental Science Research Centre* (£ & I8 1§
BEWHEAFLKTEHFRE) and later acted as a senior engineer in
the China Water Pollution Research Centre* (Ff B 7K 55 2 #f 58 & /).
From 1998 to 2010, Mr. Dai acted as the general manager and senior
engineer in a subsidiary principally engaged in wastewater treatment of
Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (B iz EBRAF]), the shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600100). From
2010 to 2012, he was the vice-president and senior engineer of Beijing
Enterprises Water Group Limited (db 3k & B HER 2 7)), the shares
of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 371). Since 2012, Mr. Dai has been
the executive director of Beijing OriginWater, a substantial Shareholder
of the Company, and the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 300070).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok For Chi (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 46, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2015. Mr. Kwok obtained
his bachelor’s degree in accounting and business administration from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November
1994, and became a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Kwok has more than 15 years of experience in
financial management and auditing, he worked in KPMG accountancy
firm from August 1994 to October 2006. Mr. Kwok was appointed as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of KFM Kingdom
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3816), since February 2012. Prior to that, Mr. Kwok served as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Xing Yuan Power
Holdings Company Limited from December 2010 to February 2012,
the financial controller of Beijing Huaxia Real Estate Development
Company Limited from October 2006 to December 2008, and Head
of the Group Finance and Investment Centre of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 754), from April 2008 to November 20009.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Ma Shihao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 78, joined the Group in August
2014 as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ma
obtained a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage study of civil
engineering from Tsinghua University in Beijing in January 1963. Mr.
Ma was qualified as an engineer specialized in radioactive wastewater
treatment in December 1979 by the National Cadre Bureau of Science
and Technology, and qualified as a senior engineer specialized
in wastewater treatment in August 1987 and as a senior engineer
(professor level) specialized in environmental engineering in November
1995 by the Beijing Senior Professional and Technical Personnel
Certifying Committee. He is mainly participating in making significant
decisions and providing independent advice on corporate governance,
connected transactions and matters of corporate operations. Mr.
Ma has more than 50 years of working experience in the water
industry. He worked in Beijing Environmental Protection Technology
Research Centre between January 1963 and January 1999, and was
subsequently appointed as a member of the Shandong Xiaoginghe
Wastewater Treatment Construction Technology Advisory Committee.
Mr. Ma was appointed as independent director of Beijing OriginWater
between September 2007 and April 2014. Mr. Ma is the author of the
Beijing discharge standard of water pollutants for municipal wastewater
treatment plants (DB11/890-2012) promulgated by Beijing People’s
Government in May 2012 and the second amendment of the Beijing
integrated discharge standard of water pollutants (DB11/307-2013)
promulgated by Beijing People’s Government in December 2013. Mr.
Ma was awarded by the Ministry of Environmental Protection and
the Beijing Municipal Management Committee for preparing various
feasibility reports on wastewater treatment. Mr. Ma was awarded for
his book, “The Book of Practical Water Treatment Technology” in
September 2002 published by China Petroleum & Chemical Industry
Federation.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Ren Gangfeng (“Mr. Ren”), aged 39, joined the Group in August
2014 as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Ren obtained a bachelor’s degree in environmental planning and
management from Kunming University of Science & Technology in
Kunming in July 2000. He is mainly responsible for making significant
business decisions and providing independent advice on corporate
governance, connected transactions, various matters of Directors
and senior management. Mr. Ren has more than 8 years of senior
management experience in water works industry. In July 2007, Mr.
Ren was appointed the engineer, project manager and the project
director of China Urban Construction Design & Research Institute
Company Limited. Since March 2010, Mr. Ren has been appointed as
the legal representative and general manager of Yunnan Hong Feng
Construction Work Company Limited.

Mr. Hu Song (“Mr. Hu”), aged 55, joined the Group in August 2014
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hu
obtained a master’s degree in western economics from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in Wuhan in December 2002.
He is mainly participating in making significant business decisions and
providing independent advice on corporate governance, connected
transactions, various matters of Directors and scale management. Mr.
Hu has approximately 13 years of experience as senior management
in large-scale enterprises. Mr. Hu was appointed as the director of
Shenzhen Yungong Investment Co., Ltd.* between March 2003 and
February 2009. Mr. Hu was appointed as director of Zhaomao Capital
Management Co., Ltd.* between August 2008 and November 2014.
Since July 2013, Mr. Hu has been the consultant of Mission Hills
Group.
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EE ESENEREEAE

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Wang Shugin (“Ms. Wang”), aged 44, has been a shareholder
representative Supervisor of the Company since June 2011. Ms.
Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics and management
from Huazhong Agricultural University in June 1995, and a master’s
degree in economics from Renmin University of China in January
2002. Ms. Wang was qualified as an enterprise legal adviser certified
by SASAC in October 2006 and a senior accountant in May 2010
certified by Beijing Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social
Security. Ms. Wang is mainly responsible for supervising Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance
with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolution
of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Wang has more than 8 years of
experience in environmental and water works industry. She has been
the manager of finance department and promoted to the deputy
chief financial officer of Beijing OriginWater, since May 2007, and the
supervisor of a number of subsidiaries of Beijing OriginWater since
August 2011.

Ms. Li Bo (“Ms. Li”), aged 40, joined the Group in August 2014 as a
shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Li obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from Dalian University
of Technology in Dalian in June 2008. She is mainly responsible for
supervising the Directors, managers and other management personnel
to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of
Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Li
has more than 10 years of senior management experience in water
works industry. Ms. Li was appointed as the deputy manager of the
investment and financing department of YMCI, between April 2005
and May 2010 and was promoted as manager of the investment and
financing department between May 2010 and May 2012. Since May
2012, Ms. Li has been acting as the board office director of YMCI. Ms.
Li has also been appointed as the director of a number of subsidiaries
of YMCI since January 2014.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Ms. Yang Chuanyun (“Ms. Yang”), aged 39, joined the Group in June
2011 as an employee representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economic law in June 2000 and
a master’s degree in economic law in June 2003 from China University
of Political Science and Law in Beijing. She is currently the manager of
the legal department of the Company. Ms. Yang is mainly responsible
for supervising the Directors, managers and other management
personnel to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles
of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms.
Yang has more than 10 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises. Between September 2004 and July 2008, Ms. Yang was
appointed as the legal consultant of Beijing Municipal Investment
Company Limited. Ms. Yang served in the legal department of Yunnan
Province Water, our controlling shareholder, between December 2009
and June 2011.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 32, joined the Group in
January 2015 as an employee representative Supervisor of the
Company. Ms. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management
from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July 2007. Ms. Tang obtained the
qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the Ministry
of Finance. She is responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 8 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of
the Yunnan branch office of Ping An Life Insurance Limited between
July 2007 and June 2008, later she served as the accountant for
the Beijing branch office of Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance
Company of China Limited from July 2008 to March 2010. From March
2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business department of
Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Since March 2015,
Ms. Tang served in the bidding and procurement department of our
Company.
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Mr. Cao Jinwen (“Mr. Cao”), aged 39, joined our Group in January
2015 as an independent Supervisor of our Company. Mr. Cao obtained
a bachelor’s degree in tourism management from Beijing Technology
and Business University in June 2001, further obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Yunnan University in January
2009, and obtained the Membership Certificate of Certified Public
Accountants in May 2013 from the Yunnan Provincial Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is responsible for supervising the
Directors, managers and other management personnel to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and
the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Cao has more than
14 years of working experience in large-scale enterprises. Mr. Cao
was appointed as an auditor of Zhong He Zheng Xin (Yunnan) CPAs
between July 2001 and August 2008, and he was later promoted as
the business manager and senior manager. Since September 2008,
Mr. Cao has been appointed as director and managing director of the
investment bank department of Hongta Securities Company Limited.
Since July 2013, Mr. Cao has been the external professor of Yunnan
University for the master’s degree course in accountancy.

Mr. Tan Hairui (“Mr. Tan”), aged 46, joined the Group in January
2015 as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade
College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics)
in Yunnan in July 1993. Mr. Tan obtained the certificate as a registered
accountant issued by Accountant Examination Committee of Ministry
of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and a Lawyer’s License in August
2004. Mr. Tan is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan has more than 16 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises. He was the deputy manager
of the financial department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry
Company from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan joined Yunnan
Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002
to August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer
between September 2007 and March 2009. Since March 2009, Mr. Tan
has been working in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Shake (“Mr. Hu”), aged 60, joined the Group in December
2011 as deputy chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu was
graduated from Vocational College of Yunnan Highway Bureau in July
1984, majoring in highway engineering. He is mainly responsible for
investment projects of our Group in Yunnan, liaising and coordinating
work of projects in Dali and Nujiang areas. Mr. Hu has over 20
years of relevant senior management experience in a number of
companies and water works related companies. From March 1996 to
December 1999, Mr. Hu was appointed as the head of construction
of the construction command headquarters for the Yunnan Chuda
Expressway. From January 2000 to August 2005, Mr. Hu was
appointed as chief monitoring engineer and deputy commander of
the construction command headquarters for the Yunnan Songming
Expressway pending for repairs. From August 2005 to May 2006,
Mr. Hu was appointed as deputy general manager of Yunnan Kunmo
Expressway Company Limited. From June 2006 to April 2009, Mr. Hu
was appointed as deputy head of quality control department of Yunnan
Highway Development and Investment Company Limited. From May
2009 to June 2011, Mr. Hu was appointed as deputy general manager
of Yunnan Province Water, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
And Mr. Hu was appointed as director of a number of subsidiaries of
our Company since 2010.

Mr. Yang Fang (“Mr. Yang”), aged 43, joined the Group in March 2013
as party secretary of the Company. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accounting and statistics from Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics in July 1998 and further obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration from Dalian University of Technology
in June 2008. Mr. Yang was qualified as a first class enterprise human
resources managing personnel in March 2009 certified by the Ministry
of Labor and Social Security. He was subsequently appointed as
deputy chief executive officer of the Company in November 2014. He is
mainly responsible for disciplinary inspection, supervision of the overall
operation, human resources, liaising and coordinating work of projects
in Xinjiang and Wenshan areas. Mr. Yang has more than 9 years of
senior management experience in water works related companies.
Mr. Yang has served in various positions in YMCI, including deputy
manager of personnel and organization department, manager of
personnel and organization department and manager of the human
resources department. Mr. Yang was the party secretary of Yunnan
Province Water from May 2012 to September 2014.
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Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 45, joined the Group in
January 2013 as manager of finance department of the Company,
subsequently he was promoted to financial controller in November
2013. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics in July
1993 from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan
University of Finance and Economics) and a master’s degree in
business administration in January 2009 from the Yunnan University.
He was qualified as an accountant in the PRC in May 1996, and also
qualified as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October 2000, later he
was promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. He is mainly
responsible for the Company’s financial management, liaising and
coordinating work of projects in Beijing area. Mr. Wang has more than
13 years of senior management experience in large-scale enterprises
and extensive experience in accounting. From April 2002 to January
2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance department
of Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li”), aged 38, joined the Company in May 2013 as
company secretary of the Company and was appointed as Secretary to
the Board since August 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University
of Economics and Business in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in
economics in July 2001 and obtained a master’s degree in accounting
from Macquarie University in Australia in April 2006. Mr. Li is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He is
mainly responsible for assisting the operation of our Company and
meetings of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 8 years of experience in
finance-related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office
of New South Wales as a contract auditor since August 2007 and was
later promoted to senior auditor. From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr.
Li was appointed as the financial controller and the company secretary
of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to the Shareholders.

THE IPO AND THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 27 May 2015. After completion of the IPO, the total number of
the Company’s H shares was 363,713,900 (including the H shares
converted from domestic shares on a one-for-one basis). The proceeds
from the IPO after deducting the relevant listing expenses were
approximately HK$1,739 million. The utilization of which is in line
with the information as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 13 May 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has utilized
proceeds of approximately HK$1,715 million, and unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$24 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2016, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00
each. Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the
Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing Shareholders in proportion to their
shareholdings.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental
integrated services and the only urban environmental integrated
service provider in Yunnan Province. The Group is also one of the
few integrated operators in municipal environmental services in China
that has expanded overseas successfully, and our overseas business
is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the Group
operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve
the Group’s profitability structure and broaden the sources of income.
The Group has good track records in projects such as urban waste
water treatment, tap water and raw water supply, river management
and solid waste treatment.

The major business segments of the Group include investment,
construction and management services for urban water supply, waste
water treatment, solid waste treatment and environmental integrated
management projects, construction and sales of equipment and other
environmental protection related services. The corporate strategy of
the Group is to set our base of business in Yunnan, identify overseas
investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging
markets, in order to secure a stable source of income.

RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 100 to 101. The
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 is set out in the
consolidated balance sheet on page 102 to 104. The consolidated cash
flow of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flows on page 107 to 108.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and
significant elements affecting the results of operations and financial
condition of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report from page 16 to 32.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to declare the final dividend of RMBO0.1 per
Share (tax included) for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the consideration and approval
by the Shareholders at the AGM. The final dividend is payable to the
Shareholders whose names are listed in the register of members of the
Company on 25 June 2017, in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB119.3 million.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the final
dividend will be denominated and declared in RMB. The final dividend
on Domestic Share will be paid in RMB and on H Share will be paid
in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant exchange rate for conversion shall
be calculated by the average median exchange rate for converting
RMB into Hong Kong dollar as quoted by the China Foreign Exchange
Trading Centre for the week immediately before the date on which the
dividend was declared (i.e. Tuesday, 13 June 2017). The final dividend
is expected to be distributed on or before 28 July 2017.

The Company has established a sound decision making process and
profit distribution mechanism. Emphasis is placed on Shareholder
returns and cash dividends are distributed to Shareholders regularly. In
formulating the profit distribution plan, the Board has fully considered
the opinions and demands of Shareholders to, after taking into account
the statutory interests of minority Shareholders, and has submitted
the profit distribution plan at the general meeting for approval. Also,
the independent non-executive Directors have properly carried out
their duties in regards to the decision making process of the profit
distribution plan.

Under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the PRC (collectively
the “PRC Tax Law”), the Company is required to withhold corporate
income tax at the rate of 10% when distributing the final dividend to
non-resident enterprises (such term shall have the meaning as defined
under the PRC Tax Law) whose names appear on the H Shares register
of members of the Company.

In accordance with the PRC Tax Law, the Company is also required
to withhold individual income tax when distributing the final dividend
to individual shareholders whose names appeared on the H Shares
register of members of the Company. The Company will determine the
country of domicile of the individual holders of H Shares based on the
registered addresses as recorded in the H Shares register of members
of the Company on the record date with details as follows:

- For individual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong and Macau
residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which
has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of them.
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- For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of them. The Company would make applications on
their behalf to seek entitlement of the relevant agreed preferential
treatments pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential
Treatment Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)
(Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124) (BEIRBI B L RERNE <IBERES
FinESFBSEWE (F17) > HBA) (BIFi 3 [2009]124 5%)).

- For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of higher than 10% but lower than
20%, the Company would withhold and pay the individual income
tax at the agreed-upon effective tax rate on behalf of them.

S For individual holders of H Shares who are residents of those
countries without any tax treaties with the PRC or having tax
treaties with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or
more, and other situations, the Company would withhold and pay
the individual income tax at a tax rate of 20% on behalf of them.

If individual shareholders of H Shares have any queries on the above
arrangement, they may consult their tax advisers for advice on the
taxation effects involving the ownership and disposal of H Shares in
PRC, Hong Kong and other countries (regions).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the list of Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of holders of H Shares of the
Company will be closed from 14 May 2017 to 13 June 2017 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
Holders of H Shares whose names appear on the register of holders of
H Shares of the Company at the close of business on 12 June 2017 are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

In order to attend and vote at the AGM, any holder of H Shares whose
transfer has not been registered shall lodge the transfer documents
together with the relevant share certificates with the Company’s H
Share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by no later than
4:30 p.m. on 12 May 2017.
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For the purpose of determining entitlement for the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 20 June 2017 to 25 June 2017 (both
dates inclusive) during which registration of transfer of Shares will be
suspended.

To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all transfer documents must
be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong (for holders of H Shares), or the secretariat of
the Board, located at 16th Floor, Block A, He Cheng International, 1088
Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province, the
PRC (for holders of Domestic Shares), by no later than 4:30 p.m. on 19
June 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity, of which details of reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations of
approximately RMB2.2 million in contract value (excluding personal
donations of employees).

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Group as of 31
December 2016 are set out in note 30 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and
senior management of the Company during the Reporting Period and
as at the date of this annual report is set out below.
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Directors )

Date of Appointment for
the Current Term

RTEPNZERN

Title in the Company
A B B BT

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Yu Long Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer 15 July 2014
TREXE HITES - THREH —Z-mELA+HH
Mr. Liu Xujun Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 15 July 2014

BIBE L HITES - BIBHR “E-NFELA+EA
Mr. Huang Yunjian Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 15 July 2014
BEEERYE HITES - BIRR —ZE-MELA+EA
Mr. Dai Richeng (appointed Executive Director 7 June 2016

on 7 June 2016)
BERELE(R=ZE—XRFE HITES
ANAtBEZEE)
Non-Executive Directors

FHITES

—E-AFAAtH

Mr. Xu Lei (resigned
on 24 February 2017)

HEEER=Z—tF
ZA=+mBEHE)

Mr. Wen Jianping (resigned Non-executive Director
on 17 March 2016)

NEIFEER=ZB—RF FHTES
=BTt HBME)

Mr. Jiao Jun (appointed as  Non-executive Director, acting Chairman
the acting Chairman
on 24 February 2017)

EERE(R=Z—tHF
“ATTHAEEESR

Non-executive Director, Chairman

FHTES  IF

15 July 2014
—E-NFELA+EHH
15 July 2014

—E-MFELA+HRA

15 July 2014

FYTES  KEE —E-mEtLATAR

KERE)
Mr. He Yuanping Non-executive Director 15 July 2014
fAIFEF FHITES —E-NFtLA+AHA
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi Non-executive Director 15 July 2014
BAEEE FHITES “Z-mELA+EA
Independent Non-executive

Directors
BAEHITES
Mr. Kwok For Chi Independent Non-executive Director 20 April 2015
FRERE BYFHITES —E-AF¥MNA=TtH
Mr. Hu Song Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014
Lk BMFHITES —ZE-MENA+TNR
Mr. Ma Shihao Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014
BxREL BYFHITES —EZ-mENATANR
Mr. Ren Gangfeng Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014
EEERE BAUFHITES —E-MOFENAT+NH
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EEEHE

RB|BEMR > EBE-—BEFESLHHREL
BRZEZL=FBIFUTESTULE
EEABN=D2-)METE-EBY
FRTESARAABEEXERNE
FIAENBERERIH AT -

ARAREEERBYFHATESREL
mARAEIABREHNFER L HRER
B URBERBUFHITESYRE
MRAREHAL ©

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the

Company.
Date of Appointment for the
Title in the Company Current Term
RAR BB RITEHAMEEAE
Supervisors
BE

Ms. Wang Shugin

Chairman and Shareholder representative Supervisor 15 July 2014

IRELL IE  BRRARES —E-MNFELA+AHA
Ms. Li Bo Shareholder representative Supervisor 18 August 2014
FREZL RRARES —E-MENA+NA
Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor 7 January 2015

e EE BUES —E-AF—-HBtH
Mr. Cao Jinwen Independent Supervisor 7 January 2015
EEBEL BUES —E-hF—-AtH
Ms. Yang Chuanyun Employee representative Supervisor 15 July 2014
BINELL BINKRES —Z-mELA+EHH
Ms. Tang Shuang Employee representative Supervisor 7 January 2015
FELt BINXRES —E-AF—-AtH
Senior Management

BREEE

Mr. Hu Shake Deputy chief executive officer 15 July 2014
HvERE EESE “E-NELA+EA
Mr. Yang Fang Deputy chief executive officer 1 November 2014
BAREE k= —Z-mE+—-A—H
Mr. Wang Yong Chief financial controller 20 November 2013
IE%RLE BA AR ES —E-=F+—-A=tH
Mr. Li Bo Company secretary, secretary to the Board 15 August 2013
FEEE NEWE  EFEWE —E-=FN\AT+TEH
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on page 33 to 46 of this
annual report. There are no relationships among the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company, including
financial, business, family or other material relationships as defined in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors and Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other
things, compliance with relevant laws and regulations, observation
of the Articles of Association and provision on arbitration. The
service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of
Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service
contract with the Company during the Reporting Period which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR DETERMINATION OF
THE REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management

is subject to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending
remuneration for Directors, Supervisors and senior management to
the Board with reference to, among other factors, salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out in note 41 to the Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in
which any Director or Supervisor or an entity connected to them had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any
contract of significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into
for the services provided by any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of the Board,
none of the Directors and Supervisors and their respective associates
has any business or interest that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or have or may have any conflict of interest with
the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during
the Reporting Period.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company had the following interest in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise,
to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:

EE BERESTHASERY - H
B RES ZEERRKA

RZE—ARE+ZBA=1+—H '  ~AF
B EERESTHRAERAQFTNH
HEMEELE (TR R EHRBEEG
EXVER) BB - HEROREST -
BERBES KBS KRB 5352 5= L
Hi A XN BHEAERR B RIBZIEFTF
ENETEMUNES  SBRBELESTH
BHEARQATRBEIMNERZ  HEF
BWAQXTERINT ¢

Percentage
Percentage of of the
the respective total number
Name of Director, type of Shares of Shares
Supervisor and in issue (%) in issue (%)
chief executive Number of EE#ET 1EB &7
ET EEERS Capacity Type of Shares Shares held 2 71 B 4 gy
THABRA B4 B 4 R BERHEE # EL 151 (%) #9 EE 151 (%)
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly Shares
with another person
BEEZRL" EREEA K RER
S— AT HEHFEER
Mr. Liu Xujun? Beneficial owner, Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly Shares
with another person
e EREEA B RER
S— AT HEHFEER
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic 10,690,000 (L) 1.29 0.90
Shares
TREEE BEREEA RNER
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000 (L) 0.21 0.06
TRAE BEREEA HER

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes:

L
1)

refers to long position

Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares.
By virtue of the acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert
Agreement”) dated 24 July 2014 entered into between Yunnan Province
Water, Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong, pursuant to which
each of Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in
concert with Yunnan Province Water in exercising their voting rights in
the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company. Mr. Huang is deemed to be
interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Liu
Xujun, Wang Yong and Mr. Huang himself in aggregate pursuant to the
SFO.

Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of
the Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the
Domestic Shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Huang Yunjian, Wang
Yong and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as
at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief
executives of the Company had any interests and short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company’s best knowledge, as at 31 December 2016, the
following persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests
are disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

B AT

Yunnan Province Water '

EEEAE

Wang Yong?

i®e?

YMCI'

ERpREE"

Beijing OriginWater

L REKR

Capacity
i =g

Beneficial owner,
interests held jointly

with another person
BEEAA B
S—BATHLEFEER
Beneficial owner,
interests held jointly

with another person
BERBAA B
S—BATHEFEER
Interests in controlled
corporation, interests held
jointly with another person
Interests in controlled
corporation
NEEEENER

HE - AT HERE
BENZELENER

Beneficial owner

EREEA

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Type of Shares

R 5 8 5l

Domestic
Shares

NER

Domestic
Shares

WER

Domestic
Shares

RER

Domestic
Shares

NER

FTERERRGPRHERR KA

BAQRMRA  RZZE-—R"E+ZA
=t—B THAL(EARMNESRE
BRI BERENELNES  BES
RESTHRAESERSD  HERORE
FEBRRAR | —BRE)RARER
17 HERORESTEERBE(ESFR
HERPIDEXVEIE 2 REIDEABMA
RAWRBEREERAAIARERSZRYE
RPIE 336 R AFEEAR QA ZLCMP
FENESIAR  EELARTERE
EEITRAE% R LHERIAA ¢

Percentage

Percentage of of the

the respective total number

type of Shares of Shares

in issue (%) in issue (%)

Number of EBET LB E&T
Shares ¥ 51 B 4 gy
BB EE # EE 151 (%) #9 EE 151 (%)
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
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Percentage

Percentage of of the

the respective total number

type of Shares of Shares

in issue (%) in issue (%)

Number of EBET LB T

Name of Shareholder  Capacity Type of Shares  Shares BRI gy

B sE &8 R &6 BRiER  BRHHE H EL 151 (%) B9 bE Bl (%)

CNPC Assets Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Management Co., Ltd. corporation Shares
THEEEEERAR AIEiIENER RNER

China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Corporation?® corporation Shares
HEARRAREE AT REEEENER RNER

Kunlun Trust Co. Ltd.} Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
corporation Shares
ERETERETAR RIELENER RER

Finergy Development Beneficial owner Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
(Tianjin) Equity Shares

Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)®

MRRR (X2 RERE BalaA RNER
EHLE(BRER)®

the National Council Beneficial owner H Shares 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
for Social Security Fund
of the PRC

2EHEREESEEE EREEA HR

Value Partners Group Interests in controlled H Shares 28,890,000 (L) 7.94 2.42
Limited* corporation

NEEZENER HER

Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 2,189,000 (L) 0.60 0.18
Investment Limited*

FEBRRERRAR' BREEA H&

EBMKBRERGERAA 59
2016 £ 3§



60

Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

Notes:

L
)

refers to long position

Yunnan Province Water is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial
owner of 361,487,162 Domestic Shares. Caiyun International Investment
Limited is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial owner of
2,189,000 H Shares. YMCI is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic
Shares held by Yunnan Province Water and H Shares held by Caiyun
International Investment Limited pursuant to the SFO which representing
approximately 30.48% of total issued Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI is deemed
to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Huang Yunjian, Liu
Xujin, Wang Yong and each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI in
aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue
of the Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all
the Domestic Shares held by himself, Yunnan Province Water, Huang
Yunjian and Liu Xujun in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) is controlled as to 84.86% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd., its
general partner, and the beneficial owner of 137,880,000 Domestic
Shares; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is owned as to 82.18% by CNPC Assets
Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly-owned by China National
Petroleum Corporation. Under the SFO, each of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.,
CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd. and China National Petroleum
Corporation is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held
by Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership).

Value Partners Group Limited holds interests in the Company indirectly
through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Value Partners Hong
Kong Limited and Value Partners Limited.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as
at 31 December 2016, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives) had informed the Company that he had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of equity
derivatives of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5%
or more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(i) Continuing Connected Transactions

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the announcements of the
Company dated 14 October 2016 and 6 November 2016, the
Group has entered into certain continuing connected transactions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the transactions carried
out pursuant to the BT Construction Agreement (as supplemented
by two supplemental agreements) are non-exempt connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules and the transactions carried
out pursuant to the Membrane Ancillary Material Procurement
Master Agreement and Master Sale and Purchase Agreement
for Engineering Services are continuing connected transactions
exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement but are still subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Company has obtained approval from the Stock Exchange in
respect of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions
under the BT Construction Agreement (as supplemented by two
supplemental agreements) upon the IPO and such transactions
were exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement.
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The table below shows the annual caps and actual transaction value @ THRHIZZEHEBESSHNEE=-Z

of such continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 —A~"EFE+ZA=+—HLFENFEL
December 2016: RRERRSEE :
Actual
transaction
Annual cap amount
Nature and description Basis for determining for 2016 in 2016
Name, date and term of the agreement Connected Persons  of the transaction the consideration ZEnEE —F-nE
Wi a® - A RAR REAL RHHERMR ERER R ERX5EE
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AR®TR  ARWTR
BT Construction Agreement Yunnan New Century Yunnan Water offers Onanam's length basis 77,000 —
BT IRER Dianchi Intemational construction senvice for and on normal commercial
The BT Construction Agreement was entered intoon 20 Cultural Tourism Yunnan New Century terms.

August 2014, with two supplemental agreements signed  Convention Investment ~ Dianchi

on 3 December 2014 and 25 March 2015 respectively to  Co. Lid.

ascertain the annual cap of transaction for Syearsfrom  EEHtEEMERIt ZEIBAZEHELE ATRIR-BEERT
201510 2017. IBERREERAT  HRUTEEREH
RBTIRGER-3-NENA-+RIY  ¥R-F

—-IE+ZAZAR-E-REZA-TRASIHAGS

NEE-Z-15Z-2-tE=FEERSLR-

Membrane Ancillary Material Procurement Master Beijing OriginWater Yunnan Water purchases ~ On an am'’s length basis 25,000 4,585
Agreement Technology Co,, Ltd. and  membrane ancilary and on normal commercial

RERRRETE its subsidiaries materials from Being  terms.

It was entered into on 14 October 2015 to set the annual OriginWater

cap of transaction for 3 years from 2015 o 2017, IREKERERAER Z@kBOLRELER ATRIR-REERT

RZB-RETATRATL WRE-F-1FE2-% LAREWELT REs
—tEFEERALR-

Master Sale and Purchase Agreement for Engineering Yunnan Metropolitan Yunnan Water provides ~ Onanam'’s length basis 51,000 4,670
Services Construction Investment  Engineering Servicesto  and on normal commercial

TREREHS Co, Ltd. and ts YMCI terms.

It was entered into on 6 November 2015 to set the annual  subsidiaries

cap of transaction for 3 years from 2015 o 2017. ERBTERRERE ZWABAZEIRGE ATRAR-MEERN

REZ-RET-AREAL WRE-E-1F2-% RROARAMECT  RHETERSE
—tE=FFERGLR-
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Several related-party transactions as disclosed in Note 38 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under
the definition of “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) carried out in normal commercial terms or better; and

(38) carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the
terms of which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Auditor’s Confirmation

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
above continuing connected transactions.

(i) Connected Transaction

On 24 October 2016, the Company entered into the equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) with
Yunnan Zhengxiao Cables Co., Ltd.* (EFEEEEER A A]) (the
“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire,
and the Vendor agreed to sell, 40% equity interest in Zhengxiao
Environmental Protection Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ & IF B & &
% & B R 2 7)) (the “Target Company”) for a consideration of
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RMB220,000,000 plus the additional consideration in the amount
of RMB10,000,000 (subject to the fulfillment of certain conditions
precedent) (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition would have
significant implications on the Group for the future development
of medical waste treatment business in the market of Yunnan
Province.

Before completion of the Acquisition, the Target Company was
a subsidiary held by the Company as to 60%, and the remaining
40% equity interest was held by the Vendor. As the Vendor was a
substantial shareholder of the Target Company, the Vendor was
a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. As
such, the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and was subject
to the announcement, reporting and shareholders’ approval
requirements unless otherwise exempted under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As the transaction under the equity transfer agreement (the
“Previous Equity Transfer Agreement”) entered into amongst
the Company and the Vendor on 18 December 2015 with
respect to the acquisition of the 60% equity interest of the Target
Company was completed within the past 12 months from the
date of the Equity Transfer Agreement, the transaction under
the Previous Equity Transfer Agreement and the Acquisition
were aggregated in computing the applicable percentage ratios
pursuant to Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules. As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios of the Acquisition were more than 5%
and none of the applicable percentage ratios was more than 25%,
the Acquisition also constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company and was subject to the announcement and reporting
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Given that the Acquisition was (i) on normal commercial terms; (ii)
the Board had approved the Acquisition; and (jii) the independent
non-executive Directors had confirmed that the terms of the
Acquisition were fair and reasonable, the Acquisition was on
normal commercial terms and in the interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole, pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of
the Listing Rules, the Acquisition was exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements and was subject to only the announcement
and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Acquisition was completed on 8 December 2016.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition
undertaking on 6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-
competition Undertaking”). Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert Parties has irrevocably
undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or
agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC,
among other things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition with the business of the Company
from time to time (the “Restricted Business®). Each of the Acting in
Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is
any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within
a reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to
our Company on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the
Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking
for disclosure in this report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information
provided by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Undertaking and had determined that the Acting
in Concert Parties have fully complied with and are not in breach of the
Non-competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements
(the “Non-Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the
Company. Pursuant to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the
Undertaking Shareholder has irrevocably undertaken that it will not and
will procure that its associates (except the Company) will not, directly or
indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either on its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, whether
inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with
the business of the Group from time to time. Each of the Undertaking
Shareholders has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any
new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to our
Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the
Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for
disclosure in this report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information
provided by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking
Shareholders have fully complied with and are not in breach of the
Non-competition Agreements during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period the total amount of procurement from the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 50.1% of the total
amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
procument from the largest supplier accounted for 35.1% of the total
amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for 54.2% of the total amount of revenue, and the total
amount of sales to the largest customer accounted for 25.6% of the
total amount of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective
close associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do
not hold any interest in the top five customers and top five suppliers of
the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the Note 2.26 to the Financial Statements for detailed
information on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year and material factors relating to its
results and financial conditions are respectively set out in the chapter
headed “Chief Executive Officer’'s Report” from page 10 to 15 and the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page 16
to 32 in this annual report. Such discussions constitute an integral part
of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment
services providers in the PRC, the Group is committed to operating
its various business segments in an environmentally-friendly manner.
The Board believes that compliance with the relevant environmental
protection rules and regulations is crucial to the long term development
and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to maintain a high
standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations, the
Group offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the
various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As
a result of the Group’s commitment to environmental protection and
through the implementation of advanced technologies, the Group
has achieved safe and environmentally-friendly production during the
Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the
cornerstone of a business and attaches considerable importance to it.
To the best knowledge of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the
Company has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Company. Furthermore, as the H Shares of
the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company shall be
bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be affected by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to
the chapter headed “Chief Executive Officer’s Report” from page 10
to 15 of this annual report for detail analysis of the relevant risks and
uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability
insurance policy covering, among others, all directors of the Company
and its “associated companies” (as such term is defined under the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DEBT INSTRUMENT ISSUE

During the Reporting Period, the Group issued the following debt
instruments for purposes of meeting the daily business operation
needs, adjusting the debt structure, replenishing working capital and
project investment.

(1)  On 11 October 2016, Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited*
(B JE K 7% (F M) A& BR 2 &) and Jinghong Water Supply and
Drainage Co., Ltd.* (Rt M4 #KEREEAF), both being non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, issued the asset-
backed securities with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000,
a maturity period of not more than 9 years at a weighted average
interest rate of 4.122% to institutional investors in the PRC;

(2) On 26 August 2016, the Company issued a three-year private
placement note with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 at
an interest rate of 4% per annum.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders
and enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the factors leading to the success of
the Company and balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. Details of the corporate governance practice of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from page
71 to 90 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had not been
involved in any material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are
not aware of any litigation or claims of material importance pending or
threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set
out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from
page 16 to 32 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results
and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for
the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 prepared in accordance with
HKFRS have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company
has retained the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of
the Company for the year of 2017 will be proposed at the AGM.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
257 in this annual report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Jiao Jun
acting Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
30 March 2017
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of
the Company from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

The Group strive to maintain high standards of corporate governance to
enhance Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The
Company’s corporate governance principles emphasize the importance
of a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders
and enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the factors leading to the success of
the Company and balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors.
The Group has made specific enquiries with all of its Directors and
Supervisors, and all Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition
The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Long (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Xujun (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Huang Yunjian (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Dai Richeng (appointed on 7 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (Chairman, resigned on 24 February 2017)

Mr. Jiao Jun (acting Chairman, effective from 24 February 2017)

Mr. Wen Jianping (resigned on 17 March 2016)

Mr. He Yuanping
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi
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Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEHITES

Mr. Kwok For Chi
Mr. Hu Song

Mr. Ma Shihao
Mr. Ren Gangfeng

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has
any financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other. In particular, there is no such relationship between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of Chairman
(and the acting Chairman since the resignation of the Chairman on
24 February 2017) and the Chief Executive Officer are separated and
assumed by Mr. Xu Lei (and Mr. Jiao Jun who was appointed as the
acting Chairman on 24 February 2017) and Mr. Yu Long, respectively.
For details, please refer to the section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below.
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The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of
Association and provision on arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, the Directors (including the non-executive Directors and
the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a term of three
years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors (at least one-third
of the Board) with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence during
the Reporting Period pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent during the Reporting Period in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement
and to act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
The Board oversees management’s efforts to promote the Company’s
success while operating in an effective and responsible manner. The
Board also formulates the Company’s overall business strategies and
monitors management’s execution of such strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business
and governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these
matters reserved for the Board have been separately defined, and are
reviewed periodically, to ensure that the Company maintains the proper
level of corporate governance and to ensure they are up to date. In this
regard, the Board discharges, among others, the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a
general meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its
work to the general meeting and to implement the resolutions of
the general meetings;

(2) to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment
plans;

(8) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final
financial budgets and profit distribution plan and plan for recovery
of losses;

(4) to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal,
repurchase of shares of the Company or merger, division,
dissolution and alteration of corporate form of the Company;

(5) to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and
punishments of the Company’s staff;

(6) to decide on the establishment of special committees under the
Board and to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7) to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal
or remove of accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the
Company; and

(8) toreview and supervise the policies and practices of the Company
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and
operations to the Company’s senior management team, which
includes its chief administration officers, the chief executive officer
and deputy chief executive officers. The senior management team
meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and
make recommendations to the Board. The senior management team
administers, enforces, interprets and supervises compliance with the
internal rules and operational procedures of the Company as well
as its subsidiaries and conducts regular reviews, recommends and
advises on appropriate amendments to such rules and procedures. The
senior management team reports to the Board on a regular basis and
communicates with the Board whenever required.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance
policies and performing the corporate governance duties, which
include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and Senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code; and

(5) to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
make its disclosure in the corporate governance report prepared
under the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report
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Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a
year. Meetings shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of
and documents for such meetings shall be sent to all Directors and
Supervisors 14 days before the meeting is held. The Chairman, any
Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting rights, more
than one-third of the Directors, or the Supervisory committee or more
than one-half of the independent non-executive Directors or the Chief
Executive Officer may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting
of the Board. The Chairman shall convene and preside over the
extraordinary meeting of the Board within ten days upon receipt of the
proposal, and shall give written notice to all Directors and Supervisors
five days before the meeting is held. During the Reporting Period, the
Board held 33 Board meetings, one annual general meeting and two
extraordinary general meetings.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon
approval by the Chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting
notice as set out in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable
notice shall be given to Directors, Supervisors and the Chief Executive
Officer.

Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of
new directors are considered first by the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, then they will make recommendations
to the Board for consideration. All nominees of new directors must be
approved by the shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain approval of the
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 33 meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or
by electronic communication means. They made informed decisions
to safeguard the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. The attendance of Directors is as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Xu Lei HELE
(resigned on 24 February 2017) (R=Z—tF=-A=T+HHEBE)
Mr. Yu Long FHEEE
Mr. Liu Xujun 2BEXE
Mr. Huang Yunjian BEERELE
Mr. Dai Richeng BAKLEE
(appointed on 7 June 2016) (R=B—ARFEAALBEZE)
Mr. Jiao Jun EEEE
Mr. Wen Jianping 8l Ak
(resigned on 17 March 2016) (R=T—RE=ZA+LHET)
Mr. He Yuanping fAIREF 4
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAEEE
Mr. Kwok For Chi HRELE
Mr. Hu Song M A
Mr. Ma Shihao AL i
Mr. Ren Gangfeng B

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board has considered and approved
important proposals, mainly including:

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2015 annual report of
the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2015 profit distribution
plan of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2016 financial budget
report of the Company

Proposal in respect of preparation of 2016 proposed investment
project plan of the Company

Proposals in respect of the approvals of the issuances of debt
financing instruments of the Company and provision of guarantee
by the Group

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2016 interim report of
the Company

Proposal in respect of the amendment to the Articles of
Association

Proposal in respect of the appointment of executive Director

Proposals in respect of notifiable transactions and connected
transactions
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ERELARE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise  BB(RATAER) RRAS2AREKE
annual general meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual SFAEMEEREAS - RRAFAS
general meetings are held once every year and within six months after SFZARA—X X YEAL—EAHBEE
the conclusion of the previous financial year. During the Reporting & R#&RNE B REIT - RBEHRX -
Period, the Company held a total of 3 general meetings, including ZAQAREBETZAREARE  HbE
two extraordinary general meetings. The attendance of Directors is as A BRERRAE - EZHNHEERN
follows: ™

Attendance/

Attendance/ Number of
Number of annual extraordinary
general meeting general meeting

BRRBEXE RIS RAE
HRERE/ H R/

Name of Director =N =N

Mr. Xu Lei HFEERE 11 2/2
(resigned on 24 February 2017) (R=F—tF=-A=+MB&HE)
Mr. Yu Long TREXE 11 2/2
Mr. Liu Xujun BIRELE 1/1 2/2
Mr. Huang Yunjian BEERELE 11 2/2
Mr. Dai Richeng BARSLE 11 1/2
(appointed on 7 June 2016) (R=ZZ2-ARFARALBEEZEM)
Mr. Jiao Jun EEAE 1/1 2/2
Mr. Wen Jianping X8IFEE 1/1 1/2
(resigned on 17 March 2016) (R=Z—RFE=ZA+tBEBE)
Mr. He Yuanping {AIRETE e 11 2/2
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAE LS 11 2/2
Mr. Kwok For Chi FRERE 1/1 2/2
Mr. Hu Song [ R e 1/1 2/2
Mr. Ma Shihao BtREE 1/1 2/2
Mr. Ren Gangfeng RS EE 1/1 2/2
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities
as Directors of the Company, and the mode of operation, business
activities and development of the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that newly appointed Directors have appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and are fully aware
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. During the Reporting Period, Directors
of the Company have participated in the training about “Obligations of
Directors of Listing Companies” conducted by lawyers.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company constantly arrange internal seminars and
provide reading materials on relevant topics to Directors, and all
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, apart from provision of
general introduction for newly appointed Directors, the Company
has also arranged the Directors, Supervisors and relevant senior
management members to participate in a training and seminar on 7
June 2016 hosted by lawyers with a view to enhancing the awareness
of the management of the Company towards the Listing Rules.

Mr. Xu Lei (resigned on 24 February 2017), Mr. Jiao Jun, Mr. Yu Long,
Mr. He Yuanping, Mr. Dai Richeng (appointed on 7 June 2016), Mr.
Feng Zhuangzhi, Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian, Mr. Kwok For Chi,
Mr. Ma Shihao, Mr. Ren Gangfeng and Mr. Hu Song have participated
in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant records to the
Company. The Directors developed and updated their knowledge and
skills through participation in the training programmers, which in turn
ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are separate and held by different persons and have been clearly
defined in the Articles of Association. Mr. Xu Lei serves as Chairman
(who resigned on 24 February 2017 and Mr. Jiao Jun was appointed
as the acting Chairman on 24 February 2017) and Mr. Yu Long serves
as Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman is elected by a majority
vote of all Directors, and the Chief Executive Officer is nominated and
appointed by the Board.

The Chairman of the Board places great emphasis on communication
with the independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman holds
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors at least once
every year, in respect of development strategy, corporate governance,
operational management, at which no executive director is present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors
may speak freely at the Board meetings and actively participate in the
discussions of significant decision-makings in the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees.
The Company had established four Board committees, being the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance
Committee and the Audit Committee.

(1). Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Jiao Jun (appointed as the acting chairman on
24 February 2017 in place of Mr. Xu Lei who resigned as the
Chairman and the chairman of the Nomination Committee on the
same day), and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu
Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition
and diversity of members of the Board in light of the Company’s
strategy; identifying suitably qualified individuals and making
recommendations to the Board to be new Board members;
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
individuals nominated to be Directors by Shareholders to ensure
that all nominations are fair and transparent; assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; reviewing
and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy of Board
members of the Company. Terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the appointment of new executive Director.

The Company had adopted a Board diversity policy with a view
to achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the possible contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The attendance record of
the committee members are as follows:

RBEMR - REZEESESHH
TESEZZEEE -

ARBCHENESTESZ TLEE
BREFNESESUIZBN - K
DNEERLEZBE—EZ TN
ESETRAESEXRREZNE
2 EFERNIRRESSARSL
NEAEBEABEERD - ERKS
BNBERAE - ARANERE
BARNRESTZEHESSHE
SRt EEMELESERME -

REZEEBRZIERZTILRA
ZETER - BEETFRMER
Fie  NEREBER EXEL
B - Beme - MBERBRBFE > AR
EZABTAESETRNERM
EHEREIRE -

RBEHRR ALAREEESH
HITT-REF U ESER
B ABRARUREYFNTE
BE2EUM - ZEEZREHER
SEUT

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

HERE

Name of Director EHRRY
Mr. Xu Lei (resigned on 24 February 2017) FEEE(R-ZZE—tFZ A=+ EHBT) 11
Mr. Hu Song A 1/1
Mr. Ren Gangfeng B 11
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(2).

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director,
Mr. Yu Long, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Hu Song (as chairman) and Mr. Ren Gangfeng.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for all Directors and senior management
members and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; review and
approval of the remuneration proposals from the management;
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members; and to advise Shareholders with respect
to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee have been published on the website of
the Company.

In 2016, the Remuneration Committee provided recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration and performance management
policy and framework for the Directors and senior management.
Meanwhile, it inspected and assessed the performance of
duties by the Directors and senior management and the annual
performance.

During the Reporting Report, the Remuneration Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, the attendance record of
the committee members are as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Hu Song
Mr. Yu Long
Mr. Ren Gangfeng

HATASEAE
THEERE
EsREE L

Corporate Governance Report

(2).

\)M\Aﬁﬂ:
FHEES
FNESRREH-—SHTEST
BEEEURMEBUFNTESH
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2 MEBSERENATESR
SREEAENHFMEE 0 RBE
RS AETERRRIER
ESRBESREORRELEZ B
HAFMEZEEnHESEC ®IIRN
RNATIHE

REg A FRZANLRE
EANEREENEOFHAE
BE - RO EEE LS -
B HEENBAELABNE
TREBRRFEERETRER
H4h

RBEBRR - ALAHHEESH
BIT-REHE REZREZHE
FCERANT

Attendance/
Number of

Meetings
HRERE
EHRRY

11
11
11
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TEERRE
(3). Compliance Committee

().

The Compliance Committee consists of one executive Director,
Mr. Yu Long, and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Kwok For Chi, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng and one
Supervisor, Ms. Yang Chuanyun. Mr. Yu Long is the chairman of
the committee.

The principle responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are
to conduct independent investigation and make decisions on
compliance matters with respect to our business operations by
authorization from the Board. The Company has established the
Compliance Committee to ensure the operation of any projects
acquired and operated by us are in compliance with our internal
control standards and the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, all the members were
attended.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Kwok For Chi (as chairman), Mr. Hu Song, Mr. Ma
Shihao and Mr. Ren Gangfeng.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company,
including making recommendations on appointing or changing
the external auditor and its terms of engagement; reviewing and
monitoring external auditor’s independence and audit process
objectively; monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts and half-year report;
oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system; other matters that
the Board has authorized it to deal with. Terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have been published on the website of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period. The
Audit Committee has also discussed matters with respect to the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company and
internal control with senior management of the Company.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee of the RBEBR > XAREREZESH
Company has held the meeting twice, the attendance record of BETTMRAER ZEGZHEHR
the committee members are as follows: FERESIT :
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
R,
Name of Director g?% #
Mr. Kwok For Chi RIELE 2/2
Mr. Hu Song B 2/2
Mr. Ma Shihao BE=E4E 2/2
Mr. Ren Gangfeng EiEE L% 2/2

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EERSREE NS

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure ~ AAREHRFTAEESREEAEN
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of the ~ HMBRBYEXRAZHENREF °
Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year BE-ZE—X<"F+-ZA=+—-—HLFE
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 41 to the Consolidated BESHFMNFBENE O 1 mKRM
Financial Statements. 341

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, RIBEHERFRAEBASE  TRES
remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) BE=FT— /—fli‘l' H +—HLEEFE

by bands for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: REfEs T TFeaREBEAB(TEHE
EE)NHM
Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands (RMB) FMER (AR A
Nil to 500,000 =2 500,000 T
500,001 to 800,000 500,001 £ 800,000 T
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016. The Directors consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and are not
aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue its operation as a going concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate
governance management policies are crucial to the sustainability of
the Group’s business. As such, the Group proactively enhances its
understanding of the latest laws and regulations and the best practices
both within and outside the PRC, which are relevant to the Group’s
business, as well as its management approach and management
system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is also committed and
dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social standards.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business, including but not limited to health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
The Group understands that a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. Towards that end, it has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community
as a whole. The Group also maintains strong relationships with its
employees, has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has
provided high quality products and services to its customers so as to
ensure sustainable development.
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An ESG report has been prepared with reference to Appendix 27 ESG
Guide to the Listing Rules. The report represents our wide commitment
to sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers
the major environmental and social policies of our Group and the
achievements and performance of such policies. The ESG report is set
out on page 258 to 272 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management
and internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments
and the Company’s assets and with the support of the Audit
Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of
internal audit system and the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered
that the risk management and internal control system of the Company
and its subsidiaries was effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page 91 to 99 of this annual
report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out below:
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Amount

&8

RMB'000

AR#ET T

Fee for audit services Bt RERE 4,900

Fee for non-audit services FEFTRBENE 1,080

Total fees BABE 5,980
The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit ~ ANEBRBEHATREF 7 H 22060

services and non-audit services during the Reporting Period. REZERE R I ERT -
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face
communication between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding more
than 10% (individually or together with others) of Shares of the
Company shall be entitled to request for an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting according to the following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same
content and format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the
aforesaid Shareholders may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting. Concerning
the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with the law,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon
receipt of the proposal. Shares held by the above Shareholders
who made the requests shall be calculated as at the date of
submitting the written request.

(2) If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon making the Board decision. Any changes made to
the original request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant
Shareholders.

(38) If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon
receipt of the proposal, Shareholders individually or together
holding more than 10% of the Shares are entitled to request the
Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting.

(4) If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of
general meeting within five days upon receiving the requests. Any
changes made to the original request in the notice shall be agreed
by the relevant Shareholders.
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(5) If the Supervisory Committee does not issue the notice of general
meeting within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the
Supervisory Committee not convening and not holding the general
meeting. Then the Shareholders who individually or together hold
more than 10% of the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days
may convene and hold the meeting themselves. Before publicly
announcing the resolution(s) of the general meeting, the convening
Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of the Shares. When
the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general meeting
and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities
regulatory authority where the Company is located and relevant
stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually
or together holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad hoc
proposals in writing to the convener of the general meeting ten days
before the holding of the general meeting. The convener shall issue
a supplementary notice of the general meeting within two days upon
receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the ad hoc
proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the
Shareholders to communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716
Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn
E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by the law.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

On 7 June 2016, the Company passed a resolution at the annual
general meeting to approve the amendments to Articles of Association,
which was effective on 30 November 2016. The amended Articles of
Association was published on the website of the Stock Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo had been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each financial
year. Mr. Li provided his training records to the Company indicating
more than 15 hours of relevant professional development by attending
courses on company secretary functions, accounting system and
Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water Investment Co.,
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 100 to 256, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession

arrangements under financial asset model

° Recoverability of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matter

Receivables and revenue
recognised for service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model

Refer to note 2.11(a) (i) for the
accounting policy of service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model,
note 4(a) for the critical
accounting estimates and
judgements involved, and note
19 to the consolidated financial
statements for the receivables
under service concession
arrangements.

The Group has entered

into a number of service
concession arrangements
with certain governmental
authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”)
under Build-Operate-
Transfer arrangements and
Transfer- Operate-Transfer
arrangements in respect of
its sewage and reclaimed
water treatment and water
distribution services. Certain
of these service concession
arrangements are accounted
for using “financial asset”
model while others are
accounted for using
“intangible asset” model.
For the Group’s service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model,
the fair value of receivables
and revenue recognised are
derived from valuation in
which a number of critical
assumptions were used. As
at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of receivables
under service concession
arrangements amounted to
RMB2,891,228,000, which
accounted for 14% of the
Group’s total assets.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

With respect to valuation and
revaluation for the service
concession arrangements
under financial asset

model undertaken during
the year, we assessed the
methodologies used by

the external valuer and
evaluated the independence,
competence and capabilities
of the external valuer.

We selected samples

of service concession
arrangements under financial
asset model for testing. The
key procedures included:

1. Examining the
agreements between the
Group and the Grantors.

2. Testing the
reasonableness and
appropriateness of
critical assumptions
adopted in the cash
flow forecasts, mainly in
relation to:

— sending confirmations
to the Grantors to
confirm the current
unit price and
the future price
incremental rate;

— assessing and
analysing the
reasonableness of
the operating costs
by comparing to
the actual costs
of other existing
service concession
arrangements of the
Group;

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B 2B AR S

Key Audit Matter

Receivables and revenue
recognised for service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
(Cont’d)

Management has engaged
an external valuer to perform
the valuation for those service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
at initial recognition, and to
perform revaluation when
there were indicators that
the critical assumptions in
the initial valuation have
been significantly affected
and deviated subsequent

to initial recognition. Such
valuation and revaluation
were determined based on
the forecasted cash flows to
be derived from the related
projects which involved
critical judgements and
assumptions including but
not limited to the effective
interest rate, forecasted unit
price of service fee, operating
costs and profit margins of
the operating services. With
reference to the valuation and
revaluation performed by the
external valuer, management
determined the amount of
receivables and revenue to
be recognised for service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
during the year, and the
subsequent measurement of
receivables and revenue.

We paid significant attention
to this area due to the
significance of receivables
and revenue recognised

for service concession
arrangements under financial
asset model and there was
critical judgement involved
in determining the critical
assumptions used in the
valuation and revaluation.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

— assessing and analysing
the profit margins of
the operating services
by comparing with the
average profit margin of
the operating services of
the industry; and

— assessing the effective
interest rate by reference
to our knowledge
of the industry and
independent research on
external evidence.

We also challenged
management’s assessment
of whether the subsequent
measurement of receivables
and revenue recognised
for the service concession
arrangements under
financial asset model
should be subject to
revaluation by comparing
the actual outcome, if
available, with the critical
assumptions applied in the
valuation in previous years
and assessing the potential
impact of reasonably
possible changes in the
critical assumptions.

Based on our audit work,
we found the critical
assumptions used by
management on the service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
to be consistent with the
evidence that we obtained.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade
receivables

Refer to note 4(b) for the
critical accounting estimates
and judgements involved, and
note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements for trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to
RMB1,827,444,000, which
accounted for 9% of the
Group’s total assets.

The identification of
impairment events and

the determination of the
impairment provision of
trade receivables require
the application of critical
judgement by management.

Management performed
individual credit evaluations
on trade receivables. These
evaluations focused on the
customers’ settlement history
and current ability to pay, and
took into account information
specific to the customers

as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in
which the customers operated.

We paid significant attention to
this area because management
made critical judgements over
both timing of recognition of
impairment and the estimation
of the amount of any such
impairment.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an
understanding of
management’s processes
and controls over credit

risk management. This
included the identification

of which receivables were
impaired and estimation of
the impairment provisions.
We determined that we could
rely on these controls for the
purposes of our audit.

In addition, we selected
samples to inquire
management for the details
of their evaluations and
tested the underlying
information referenced

by management, which
included comparing with
external evidence obtained
from our independent
research on public available
information of the customers,
performing ageing analysis,
examining the historical
transactions and settlement
records of the customers,
sending confirmations to the
customers and testing of the
subsequent settlements.

Based on the above, we
found that the judgement
applied by management
on their assessment of

the recoverability of trade
receivables was consistent
with the evidence we
obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEARBIZEMBENETFERE SR

auditor’s report is Zee, Ho Sum. ABRIERR -
PricewaterhouseCoopers B ER KEE TSR
Certified Public Accountants HESETRD

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017 BB —E—+tF=RA=T1H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EtERREMEERER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—HILEE
Note 2016 2015
g —ZE—RE —E-hHEF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARET T
Revenue U&= &5 2,865,890 1,558,394
Cost of sales SHERMA 8 (1,986,390) (1,050,772)
Gross profit EF 879,500 507,622
Other income HA 6 160,389 97,552
Other gains - net HiW = F 58 7 8,387 12,402
Selling expenses HEMX 8 (22,810) (17,187)
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (331,001) (181,220)
Operating profit R T 694,465 419,169
Finance income mE WS 10 12,674 25,553
Finance expenses g3 10 (232,816) (66,749)
Finance costs - net A AN F R 10 (220,142) (41,196)
Share of profit of investments accounted LARE SR E A BRAV RS
for using the equity method BRERF 15 42,411 4,896
Profit before income tax P45 %t BT 7 516,734 382,869
Income tax expenses FrSHipx 11 (102,468) (65,426)
Profit for the year FWiEH 414,266 317,443
Other comprehensive income HitEm =
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss AIREEH D EEIBHH
1HH
Currency translation differences EMBREER 5,123 976
Share of other comprehensive income of DR E A BRAVFE(S
investments accounted for BREHEMEEWE
using the equity method 15 (29,643) —
(24,520) 976
Total comprehensive income for the year F N2 E B 389,746 318,419
Profit attributable to: LT ANLTREMRETR :
Ordinary shareholders of the Company AARERRRR 388,093 285,853
Non-controlling interests FEIEIR R 26,173 31,590
414,266 317,443

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B REREMGRERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

Note 2016 2015
Bt EE —ZE—RE et 1573
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARET T
Total comprehensive income UTATELAZEKE
attributable to: R
Ordinary shareholders of the Company RAREBRIR 363,573 286,829
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 26,173 31,590
389,746 318,419
Earnings per share for profit attributable 7/ 7 & i@ B AR E FE (S
to ordinary shareholders of the EAERAER
Company (expressed in RMB per share) (MEBRAR¥EITERT)
- Basic and diluted —EARRE#E 12 0.325 0.270

The notes on pages 109 to 256 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

SE109 EE 5256 HNMEBMZE A
B mR 2 EARBD
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEEERER
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
Note 2016 2015
MIEE ZE—REF —E-5F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT AR®T T
ASSETS B
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 16 2,326,287 1,617,329
Investment properties REME 17 17,177 17,764
Land use rights T AR 18 192,381 121,311
Receivables under service PRSI E T HET 1Y
concession arrangements FEWFRIE 19 2,860,146 1,941,739
Amounts due from customers BHRIREREFRE
for contract works 23 659,974 404,142
Intangible assets BEEE 20 4,560,375 1,711,249
Investments accounted for using DA A A BRBIIRE
the equity method 15 746,680 34,925
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 21 4,675 —
Trade and other receivables B SR EMEWFIE 24 128,605 57,410
Prepayments FEIFRIE 24 1,230,108 715,826
Deferred income tax assets EIEFEHEE 33 245,992 56,173
12,972,400 6,677,868
Current assets REEE
Receivables under service RIS E R HET B
concession arrangements Y FE 19 31,082 11,540
Inventories FE 22 27,385 20,595
Amounts due from customers for BHIREREFRIE
contract works 23 30,614 3,477
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 24 2,723,824 1,044,376
Prepayments SCENETSE 24 133,538 152,711
Restricted cash FRFERE 25 9,610 19,603
Cash and cash equivalents RENRRESEEY 26 4,129,921 1,672,121
7,085,974 2,924,423
Total assets WEE 20,058,374 9,602,291

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEEREBR

As at 31 December

R+=-HBA=+—H
Note 2016 2015
MIEE ZE—REF —E-5F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARET T
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ordinary YNGR S5
shareholders of the Company FE(G#E &5
Share capital B 27 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves HAoth & 28 2,247,305 2,264,254
Retained earnings REBER 800,051 600,956
4,240,569 4,058,423
Perpetual capital instruments KAEARIA 29 2,000,000 =
Non-controlling interests e R S 1,005,890 884,189
Total equity LEHE I 7,246,459 4,942,612
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBERK
Borrowings =T 30 5,689,554 2,025,960
Trade and other payables B REMENRE 31 49,055 54,514
Deferred income EIE W = 32 646,997 164,876
Deferred income tax liabilities EILFIEHEE 33 646,890 198,116
Provision BiE 34 78,717 25,791
7,111,213 2,469,257
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEEERER
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H

Note 2016 2015
FIEE ZE—REF —E_FE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#T T AR¥T T

Current liabilities REAE
Borrowings R 30 2,608,925 1,038,355
Trade and other payables EH REMENTE 31 2,858,512 1,074,341
Amounts due to customers for contract works &4 LI2ENE FRIE 23 3,333 4,552
Current income tax liabilities REBFEHEE 229,932 73,174
5,700,702 2,190,422
Total liabilities ek 12,811,915 4,659,679
Total equity and liabilities EEFaEEE 20,058,374 9,602,291

The notes on pages 109 to 256 are an integral part of these 2109 EZ&55256 EMMIEERZES O
consolidated financial statements. B ERER 2R E D ©

The financial statements on pages 100 to 256 were approved by the  55100E Z 256 EM B KRR E N =
Board of Directors of the Company on 30 March 2017 and were signed @ZE—tH&=A=+HKEKATESEM

on its behalf. A AT AR -
Yu Long Liu Xujun
T ZIeE
Director Director
= 2=

1 04 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A N2z
SOtREREER
Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
ARAHE AR
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
S Hip s REEF Bt EERER aEs
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®ETRT AR%TR AR®Tx AR®TT AR®TR AR%Tx:
(note 27) (note 28)
(Mz27)  (Pates)
Balance at 1 January 2015 RIE-HAE—A—ANER 862,564 1,155,140 366,542 2,384,246 337,078 2,721,324
Total comprehensive income
for the year EN2EK BB
Profit for the year FREF = = 285,853 285,853 31,590 317,443
Currency translation differences ERNEER = 976 — 976 — 976
— 976 285,853 286,829 31,590 318,419
Total transactions with owners, HEEAETNL 4R
recognised directly in equity (ERRESTRER)
Issue of ordinary shares BITZER 330,649 1,183,137 — 1,513,786 — 1,513,786
Shares issuance costs BRADBATHA — (126,438) = (126,438) = (126,438)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AR = = = = 500,888 500,888
Capital contribution by FERERLE
non-controlling interests — — — — 14,633 14,633
Transfer to statutory reserve BELTEHE = 51,439 (51,439) = = =
330,649 1,108,138 (51,439) 1,387,348 515,521 1,902,869
RIF-1%
Balance at 31 December 2015 +ZA=+—-Bi&H 1,193,213 2,264,254 600,956 4,058,423 884,189 4,942,612
EEABRERDERD A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EHEREER
Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
FARHEAER
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other  Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital  reserves  earnings Total  XAEA interests equity
BA  EtRE  RERA @it IABBEA  EERER s
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETRT ARETR ARETR AREFT ARETR ARETR
(note27)  (note 28) (note 29)
(W&k2r)  (WizE28) (Mizk29)
Balance at 1 January 2016 RIB-AE—A-BIES 1193213 2264254 600956 4,058,423 — 884180 4942612
Total comprehensive income for
the year ENEEREER
Profit for the year FRER = = 388,093 388,093 = 26,173 414,266
Share of other comprehensive income SR E A BB RE
of investments accounted for using Hitt2EWE
the equity method — (29,643) — (29,643) — — (29,643)
Currency translation differences ERBREER = 5,123 = 5,123 = — 5,123
— (24,520) 388,093 363,573 — 26,173 389,746
Total transactions with owners, HRENETNR S A8
recognised directly in equity (R ERDRED)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) MR R (H37) = = = = — 282215 282215
Capital contribution by non-controlling ~ JEEREZ HE
interests — — — — — 87,452 87,452
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments  E{TKAERIA = = = 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
Acquisition of additional interests WEEME A R MES (I 14(d)
in subsidiaries (note 14(d)) — (62,106) — (62,106) — (266,618) (328,724)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR = = = = = (7,521) (7,521)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERLTRE = 69,677 (69,677) = = =
Dividends for the year HE-Z-RFt-A=t+-H
ended 31 December 2015 ILFEERE = —  (119,321)  (119,321) = —  (119,321)
— 1,511 (188,998) (181,427) 2,000,000 95528 1,914,101
Balance at 31 December 2016 RIF-~E+ZR=+-HM4EHR 1193213 2,247,305 800,061 4,240,569 2,000,000 1,005890 7,246,459
The notes on pages 109 to 256 are an integral part of these 109 HE 256 BB RZE SO

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EOHBREERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

Note 2016 2015
Bt EE —E—RE —E—-0F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities REFBMEERE
Cash used in operations KEFARS 35 (792,218) (681,970)
Income tax paid 2R (62,641) (80,304)
Interest paid 2FE (233,375) (91,665)
Net cash used in operating activities K& TR ST (1,088,234) (853,939)
Cash flows from investing activities BEFHNHRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net WEEKHIE AR - kR

of cash acquired BENHRE (1,126,170) (661,915)
Investment in a joint venture HEELENRE (670,037) =
Funds granted to a joint venture MEELXRMES (476,488) —
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHI B A BIVFEFIE (461,609) (523,658)
Capital injection to an associate OEE N NTEE = (35,000)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, BE#% - MEKRE

land use rights and other intangible assets ~ * b AR Htb

BLEE (516,512) (152,480)

Purchases and investments BERRBRERTKEEE

of concession projects (10,000) —
Government grants relating to purchase EHEBEYXE  BEKR

of property, plant and equipment RERELERE

and intangible assets BB 3,680 25,000
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR BRIE 11,642 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BRERRZE

plant and equipment and land use rights AR b fE FAREPRS

I 35 16,005 6,834

Interest received 2RI 17,089 9,352
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTAREFE (3,212,400) (1,331,867)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HILEE
Note 2016 2015
g —E-RE —E-1F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T AR®T T
Cash flows from financing activities MERIMEERE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 1T @RI FTSFIE — 1,513,786
Capital injections by non-controlling interests 3 B JE#= IR EZS S E 87,452 14,633
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital Z{TKAEART A
instruments Fri8sk1E 2,000,000 —
Proceeds from borrowings BERPTERIE 7,063,685 2,642,635
Funds from a related party REBEBELINES 208,240 —
Repayments of borrowings EEEX (2,253,676) (807,560)
Payments for listing expenses Xt ETER = (126,438)
Dividends paid 2R E (119,321) =
Payments for acquisition of additional W BB R 1 R RV RESD
interests in subsidiaries SN (248,724) —
Net cash generated from financing activites BEEE TSR EF 6,737,656 3,237,056
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RE&%{EY
1 niE R 2,437,022 1,051,250
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FURERBEEEEY
of year 1,672,121 612,649
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents B& KBS EEYER
& 20,778 8,222
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FEREERBEESEEY 4,129,921 1,672,121

The notes on pages 109 to 256 are an integral part of these 5109 B £ % 256 MMz EBRZE S 4
consolidated financial statements. BT 2R E D ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the
Company was converted from a limited liability company
into a joint stock limited liability company with registered
capital of RMB787,880,000. The address of its registered
office is 16th Floor, Block A Hecheng International, 1088
Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC. The Company is an investment holding
company. The Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the development, design,
construction, operation and maintenance of municipal water
supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment
facilities in the PRC.

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years and
periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.

2.

BB RRME

—RERR2TNEE

1.1 —RER

EEABERERGERAA
EATRNRA=ZZE——FXA
“t+—BEPEARHEAE
(THEDEEEZEMRL - B
—E-mMELtAZ+ZH K
ATHERSELTNEAERH
ERAT EMEABAR
787,880,000 7T o H & it
EEMIRPEEREEERT
=¥ & E R S 1088 55 M A
ElFRARE161E - " AT A —
EREERQAT  AAFARE
MBAR (S AEE D EE
EHREREEmMHK - FKE
BREREEERENREE R
BB - EEREE -

ARABHRER-Z—HFH
A+t RAESBBAERSEMR
BRARERLET °

ZEMHRRUARB(TAR
WDFr23 - BRIEZEHBA

IS ERI o

FTEEBRBE

RSO BHRERIRANERS
SABEREIMNT - BRE BB
ZEBRIRMZFINAEFER
IR EHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial
year beginning 1 January 2016. The adoption of these
new standards and amendments to standards does
not have significant impact to the results or financial
position of the Group.

Annual Improvements 2014

FEREZZ-N

HKFRS 14

EBYBHEERFE 1458

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

EBYBRELERFE 1158
(BRI &)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

BB EAE16HKRESR
SETAERIZE 38 9% (BRI A)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HEGTERE 27 R (BT A)

EEELRF

and amortisation

B P RRVERE

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

2.

AEZHITEMEE S SR

ITE

2.1

BRI BRI E(E)

AR

RRBEFHBIRRIIRIEA
BEREBMBREEAN(E
BUBHREEL NREBLF
1R (5 622 ) MR TR E 4R
o SHUBRRCBRELR
EHI A

RSB BPBREEINN
MBHEACRETERS
bt - EEAAEENE T
RIBREPTAREEEFLH
i o PR ESREF ENEM
HHEE - RRERAFTES
HUBHERMSBEANE
B - RERHIEES

@) FEBERAAIIETRAE

1278

LU 37 2 Al & ZE BME T
RAEBE-Z— <&
—A—BRBHNYRE
ERHER - RWZEE
#R] 2 B K 2 AMERT I
TEHAEENEED
MBRRELEERTE -

B

Annual improvements 2012~2014 cycle
TE-CHEET-NFEEMNFERGE
Regulatory deferral accounts

Accounting for acquisition of interests in joint operations

WERARERNERNSTEE

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation

Equity method in separate financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFHRMEE)

(Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REEE(E)
(a New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) FKEFFRWBIFTETR L
(Cont’d) 155T2ER) (#)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: applying the consolidation exception

®)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BERMEHREERE 105 - BE REEE TMASHMNER
M EERE 127K
ERETTEERIZE 28 5% (18R] AR)

HKAS1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative

BRETTERE1RUERTA) KEFE

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the (b) FEEF KRB FET
Group RANETTER)
A number of new standards and amendments to ZHEMTEARERW
standards are effective for annual periods beginning BITR=_E—RFE—A
after 1 January 2016 and have not been applied in — B2 RRAKRNFEH
preparing these consolidated financial statements. BEN HEREEE
GHEA TSR RS R IEA -
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Income taxes'
BB EAE12FUETA) BT
HKAS 7 (Amendments) Statement of cash flows’
HEGHERIE 75 (BRI ) ReRgk!
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers?
ERNBREEINE 155 REEEFIIMLEHNRA?
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and measurement of share-based
payment transactions?
EBYBHMELERE 250 (BT AR) URHDBERNTRRZ NS ERTE2
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
EBNBHELEDNFE IR SMIH?
HKFRS 16 Leases®
ERNBREEDNE 165 HEs
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an investor

(Amendments) and its associate or joint venture*
BB ELERE 105K REEHEABLERSE QAR ZBNEEHERTE
BHBETHERIZE 2857 (BFTA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

®)

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the
Group (Cont’d)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January

2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January

2018.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2019.

i Effective date to be determined.

Further information about below HKFRS that is
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

2.

FTEEHBRBER)

2.1

BB (HE)

(b) AL [E 5 R IRA B F AT

RASHEETE) ()

" RESB—tF-—5
— BB E A
AR o

2 REZB—NE-B
— BB
AR o

© RE-E—NE-P
— Bt 0 F R
E378

© ERAMEE -

FHAESRERARAEE
MTXERBYHREE
RIAVE—SERMT :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

®)

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the
Group (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining when to recognise revenue and how much
revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach:
(1) identify the contracts with customer; (2) identify
separate performance obligations in a contract; (3)
determine the transaction price; (4) allocate transaction
price to performance obligations and (5) recognise
revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. The
core principle is that a company should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to the customer in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
It moves away from a revenue recognition model
based on an “earnings processes” to an asset-liability
approach based on transfer of control. It also includes
a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces the previous
revenue standards: HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, and the related interpretations
on revenue recognition. The standard is not effective
until 1 January 2018. Management is currently
assessing the effects of applying the new standard
on the Group’s financial statements. At this stage, the
Group is not able to estimate the effect of the new
rules on the Group’s financial statements. The Group
will make more detailed assessments of the effect over
the next twelve months. HKFRS 15 is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

BB RRME

FEEHBRBER)

BB (HE)
(b) A5 [E =] R R A HI F &T

RAAETER (48)

EEMBREENES
FIRBEEFITLAYN
WU A I3 — AR E1E
28 BB RS EREEARE
BRRARERZ DU
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HNEE, QEEXRZE
B o OPERZEKE
BHEE: RONTH
BREEEFRERUWA © %
LRAIAATBBRIEW
A BUiBR IR i RN B 78
B AURBENEER
RRE2RENSERE
FBRZEE RSk -
LRI E R BRBRE
HU A e SR A B B e B A
REREBRNEE-8
Blx - HNBE-—RE
EHEREEFII NS
HRME - £58 - BRI
RIMARIRERENTHE
EMNKERE - 88
R FE 1555 R
AW AR : S
STERIFE185EIW A IR
BERAGTERE11RE
EEHREBEWRATERN
HERERRIE - SZEREN =
FE-NE—HF—HE%
¥ BEIEEEANEEFME
FE R E RIS AR E B 75
RRIEE - TEIRPEER -
AEBEEAGTIHE QY
AEBEEHROTE -
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& - BBUIEHELERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

®)

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the
Group (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. The standard does not
need to be applied until 1 January 2018. While the
Group has yet to undertake a detailed assessment, it
would appear that no impact on the Group’s current
classification, measurement and derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. Hedge
accounting is not relevant to the Group. The new
impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, contract
assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. While the Group
has not yet undertaken a detailed assessment of how
its impairment provisions would be affected by the
new model, it may result in earlier recognition of credit
losses. The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and extent of
the Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

®)

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the
Group (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for
lessors will not significantly change. The standard
will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of RMB14,058,000 (note 36). If the amounts were
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, it has
immaterial influences on total assets and liabilities. The
impact on gearing ratio is also immaterial.

BB RRME

FEEHBRBER)

BB (E)
(b) A5 B =] R R A HI F &T

RAAETER) (48)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations not under common
control

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@)

Business combinations not under common
control (Cont’d)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@)

Business combinations not under common
control (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(@)

Business combinations not under common
control (Cont’d)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(b)

Business combinations under common control
(Cont’d)

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing book
values from the controlling party’s perspective. No
amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill
or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where there
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at the
previous balance sheet date or when they first
came under common control, whichever is earlier.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidations (Cont’d)

(b)

Business combination under common control
(Cont’d)

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted
by those entities. All intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information
to shareholders, costs incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses,
etc., incurred in relation to the common control
combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions - that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEFHRMEE)

(Cont’d)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 22 MIEBLAR(E)

222 BRI

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in an associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit of
investments accounted for using the equity method” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.3

24

Associates (Cont’d)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

24

25

Joint arrangements (Cont’d)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions of the Group.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

@

®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation when items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance costs - net”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within “other
gains - net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(@

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of profit or loss are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FEEHBRBER)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ¥FE - BERRE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents plant under
construction, which is stated at actual construction cost less
any impairment loss. Construction in progress is transferred
to fixed assets when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains - net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets

@

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets (Cont’d)

®)

(©

@

Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent
as a project progresses into the development stage
the costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
are capitalised as intangible assets when recognition
criteria are fulfilled and tests for impairment are
performed annually. Other development expenditures
that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as expenses are not recognised as assets
in subsequent periods. Capitalised development costs
are transferred to technical know-how when the assets
are ready for use.

Operating concessions

The detailed accounting policy of operating
concessions is depicted in note 2.11. The operating
concessions are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the terms of operation ranging from 16 to 30 years.

Unfulfilled contract rights

Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of
unfulfilled contracts in excess of the carrying value
for unfulfilled construction contracts acquired through
business combination. These intangible assets are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the remaining
contract periods ranging from 2 to 29 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(€

®

Licenses

Licenses represent the fair value of the operating
permits of solid waste treatment plants and
water supply facilities acquired through business
combination. These intangible assets are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the concession period from
20 to 48 years.

Technical know-how and software

Acquired technical know-how and software are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
or through business combination. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives from 15 to
47 years.

2.10 Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments
for land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the prepaid operating lease payments for
land over the remaining lease term or the operating period,
whichever is shorter.

Land use rights

40-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or
their designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession
arrangements consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the “TOT”)
arrangements. Under the BOT arrangements, the Group
carries out construction work of the facilities of the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment, water distribution or solid
waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in return a
right to operate the facilities of service project concerned for
a specified period of time (the “Service Concession Period”)
in accordance with the pre-established conditions set by the
Grantors, the service project should be transferred to the
Grantors with nil consideration at the end of the operation
period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a BOT arrangement,
except that the Group pays consideration for the right to
operate the facilities of the sewage and reclaimed water
treatment, water distribution or solid waste treatment that
has been built.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property,
plant and equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant
governmental authorities as Grantors will control and
regulate the scope of service that the Group must provide
with the facilities, and retain the beneficial entitlement
to any residual interest in the facilities at the end of
the Service Concession Period. Each of these service
concession arrangements is governed by a contract and,
where applicable, supplementary agreements entered into
between the Group and the relevant governmental authority
in the PRC that set out, inter alia, performance standards,
mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group
to restore the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at
the end of the Service Concession Period and arrangements
for arbitrating disputes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor

(i)

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service
concession arrangement) is recognised to the
extent that the Group has an unconditional
right to receive cash or another financial asset
from the Grantor for the construction services
rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during
the Service Concession Period. The Group has
an unconditional right to receive cash if the
Grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received
from the users of the public service and the
specified or determinable amounts. The financial
asset (receivable under a service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with
the policy set out for loans and receivables under
note 2.13 “financial assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(i)

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model (Cont’d)

When the Group receives a payment during
the concession period, it will apportion such
payment between (i) a repayment of the financial
asset (if any), which will be used to reduce the
carrying amount of financial receivables on the
consolidated statement of financial position, (i)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue
in profit or loss and (iii) revenue from operating
service in the profit or loss. Revenue from
operating service is calculated based on cost plus
a profit margin.

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is
recognised to the extent that the Group receives
a right to charge users of public service, which
is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent
that the public uses and service. The intangible
asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible
assets” in note 2.9 above, which is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the Service Concession
Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(i)

(il

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model (Cont’d)

Revenue relating to operating service are
accounted for in accordance with the policy for
note 2.29 “revenue recognition” below. Costs for
operating services are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
model

If the Group is paid for the construction services
partly by a financial asset and partly by an
intangible asset, then each component of the
consideration is accounted for separately and
is recognised initially at the fair value of the
consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

®)

()

Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade service
under the concession arrangement is calculated as the
estimated total construction cost plus a profit margin.
The profit margins are valued by an independent
qualified valuer, based on prevailing market rate
applicable to similar construction services rendered in
similar location at date of agreement.

Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade
services are accounted for in accordance with the
policy for note 2.17 “construction contracts” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to
a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it
must fulfil as a condition of its licences, that is (i) to
maintain the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants it operates to a specified
level of serviceability and/or (ii) to restore the plants
to a specified condition before they are handed over
to the Grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water
treatment and water distribution plants, except for
upgrade element, are recognised and measured
in accordance with the policy set out for note 2.27
“provisions” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FIEESBRBEGE)
(Cont’d)

212 FERMEENRE

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

2.13 Financial assets

2.13.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.13.1Classification (Cont’d)

(@)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables”, “receivables under
service concession arrangements”, “amounts due
from customers for contract works”, “restricted
cash” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERTBRBE(E)

(Cont’d)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont’d) 213 SRIEE(E)

2.132 Recognition and measurement 2132 FERREE
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ERBAREEN SR
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which BEERR S B (REBEH
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. EEARLEZEEN

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2132 Recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “other gains - net”.

Available-for-sale equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are subsequently
measured at cost.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part
of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

@

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d))

@

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as construction delays due to
fire, earthquake or other natural disasters, changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d))

©®)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss —
is reclassified from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.17 Construction contracts

A construction contract is defined by HKAS 11,
“Construction contracts”, as a contract specifically
negotiated for the construction of an asset.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of completion.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable of being
reliably measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion” method to
determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future
activity on a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.

On the balance sheet, the Group reports the net contract
position for each contract as either an asset or a liability.
A contract represents an asset where costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings; a contract represents a liability where the opposite
is the case.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as
“restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash
and cash equivalents in the cash flow statements.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Perpetual capital instruments

Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holders are classified as equity instruments. They are
initially recorded at the proceeds received within equity.
Discretionary interest declared by the Group to the holders
of perpetual capital instrument is treated as dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.22

2.23

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the report
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FEEHBRBER)

2.24 Borrowing costs 2.24 BRI

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

®)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

®)

Deferred income tax (Cont'd)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates and joint ventures. Only where
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred income
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s and joint ventures’
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

()

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.26 Employee benefits

(@

Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other than
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the
PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.26 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b)

Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries where there
is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan,
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in employee
benefit expense, except where included in the cost of
an asset, reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the current
year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.26 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Defined benefit plan (Cont’d)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
statement of profit or loss. Changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

2.27 Provisions

Provisions for maintenance costs and employee benefit
are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.27 Provisions (Cont’d)

2.28

2.29

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

@

®)

()

@

(e)

Sales of water and goods

Sales of water and goods are recognised when a group
entity has delivered water and goods to the customer;
the customer has accepted the water and goods and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Sales from construction contracts

Income from construction service is recognised on the
percentage-of-completion method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “construction contracts”
(note 2.17).

Rendering of service

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste
treatment and other services is recognised when
service is rendered.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.30 Leases

2.31

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and fair value
and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors

(@) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions being settled in RMB,
which is the functional currency of most of
the group entities. The Group also has certain
subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is
managed primarily through financing activities
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.
The group entities are exposed to foreign
exchange risk of foreign currencies other than
their functional currencies, primarily with respect
to the US dollars (“US$”), Euro (“EUR”) and Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”) (together “Non-functional
Currencies”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group
had more financial liabilities than financial assets
denominated in Non-functional Currencies of the
group entities. Fluctuations in exchange rates
between the functional currencies of respective
group entities and Non-functional Currencies in
which the group entities conducts business may
affect the Group’s financial position and results of
operations. The Group seeks to limit its exposure
to foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and
minimizing its net foreign currency position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMBHEREIERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 BERBEZEE)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d) (@ mHEkEGE)
()  Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d) i)y HERBEGE)

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis TRITEEEE

of a 7% change in functional currencies of BRI 3k

respective group entities against Non-functional hee EBZE7%

Currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes Non- HNBRBREDH - %

functional Currencies denominated monetary BREDMEEN

items and adjusts their translation at the year-end FEINREEMEFTEN

for a 7% change in Non-functional Currencies with EMIEE  RER

all other variables held constant. If Non-functional RIEDREEKEH

Currencies had strengthened/weakened by 7% T%(FTEHMEE

against the respective functional currencies of REFEFAE)MAR

group entities, the effect in the profit for the year B"E - wMIkEHEE

of the Group is as follows: BHEEERWE

BEUMEEEEAE

RE7% AEAE
EEFREF

T :
As at 31 December
R+=-HA=+—H
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E-EHF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBEF T AREBT T
Net profit (decrease)/increase SFRFCRD) 180
— Strengthened 7% - HE7% (11,043) (2,520)
— Weakened 7% —BRE7% 11,043 2,520
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix
of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in
order to manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest-bearing bank borrowings, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
stated at amortised cost and not revalued on a
periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as
earned/incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has floating
rate borrowings amounting to RMB3,098,085,000
(2015: RMB1,095,043,000). If there would be a
general increase/decrease in the market interest
rates by 100 basis points, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit would
have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB20,598,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB8,266,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in market interest rates had
occurred as at the 31 December 2016 and 2015
and had applied the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk to those financial instruments in
existence at those dates.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

®)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is the carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from customers for contract works and
receivables under service concession arrangements.

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of
loss on such assets.

For trade receivables (note 24) and receivables under
service concession arrangements (note 19), the
customers are primarily local governments and PRC
state-owned entities and management considers the
credit risk is not high.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

()

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by Group financial
department. Group financial department monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach
borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on
any of its borrowing facilities.

The Group financial department monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The Group expects to fund its future cash
flow needs through internally generated cash flows
from operations, borrowings and perpetual capital
instruments from financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, including interest payments computed
using contractual rates, or, if floating, based on current
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ORI R A
3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. WMHBERKREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 B¥RBEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) ©) mEELERE
Between  Between

Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
150R 1225 2Z5%  5ENLE ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

As at 31 December 2016 RIE-"E+ZH=1+—-H

Financial liabilities EHER
Borrowings EES 2,904,139 1,592,384 3,815,009 899,770 9,211,302
Trade and other payables ()~ EZREMEMFHE() 2,607,338 10,000 30,000 23000 2,670,338

5511,477 1,602,384 3,845,009 922,770 11,881,640

As at 31 December 2015 RIF-15+ZRA=1+-H

Financial liabilities EMaR
Borrowings EE 1183517 656,083 1,272,105 409415 3,521,120
Trade and other payables () B%REMBENTIE() 947,368 10,000 30,000 30,000 1,017,368
2,130,885 666,083 1,302,105 439,415 4,538,488
* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes * TEEEMNETER -
payable and advances from customers. HitE(FIER R

=k
TA °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMBHEREIERE)
3.2 Capital management 3.2 EBEXREE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEENEAEENENAR

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or
raise funding through capital markets as necessary.

EAREEEHFELE - B
BRI EHR K S E bR 5548
BERMNE  URERRE
NEARRBLURDEARRA

RRENABELRER  F&
B RS AR T IRER AR
B2 BRRREER - H
EEEURDBEBRRNBERER

hEEEES(WMER)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. rEBRBEEE B RER
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. B o b RIRFEBRUE
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current BARGTE - RFERIREREE
and non-current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated (BEeEEEBRITH
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital [BNEAR FEBNHAMERR ) IR &
is calculated as “total equity” as shown in the financial RREZEBYTE - BEKRIR
statements plus net borrowings. B SRER PR 0 RE R 4288 Ihn
ERFRERTE o

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H

2016 2015

—~E —E—-hF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARKEF T ARETT

Total borrowings (note 30) BB EE (MIEE 30) 8,298,479 3,064,315
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 26) & : RERIBEZEY

(HfEE26) 4,129,921)  (1,672,121)

Net borrowings EEEE-E] 4,168,558 1,392,194

Total equity FERARER 7,246,459 4,942 612

Total capital BENEEE 11,415,017 6,334,806

Gearing ratio EESEBER 36.52% 21.98%

The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily
from the increase of borrowings during the year ended 31
December 2016.

AERALERSEBRMRN
WE=T—AFT=A=+-
U BRSO -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SOt SRR MR
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMBHERKREIERE)
3.3 Financial instruments by category 3.3 RERNZSHNERMTA
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2016 2015
ZE—REF —F-HF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥T T
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables BEXRKEWFRIE
- Trade and other receivables - B RHEMERRIE 2,852,429 1,101,786
- Receivables under service — RIS EELTHET
concession arrangements R FEWFRIE 2,891,228 1,953,279
— Amounts due from customers for —-EHNIREWREF
contract works I8 690,588 407,619
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERBEEZEEY 4,129,921 1,672,121
— Restricted cash —ZRERE 9,610 19,603
10,573,776 5,154,408
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHREE 4,675 —
10,578,451 5,154,408
Financial liabilities ERaE
- Borrowings RN 8,298,479 3,064,315
- Trade and other payables (*) - B REMER
FRIE (%) 2,654,986 1,001,883
10,953,465 4,066,198

*

and advances from customers.

Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes payable

All financial instruments are stated at amortised cost.

*

TEREEMETIEF - Hit
BABEREFEHR -

FESB T ARBHERART

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.4 Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial instruments recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet are mainly receivables and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. The fair values
of these financial instruments approximate their carrying

amounts.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by
levels of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

(level 3).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group does not have any
financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Service concession arrangements under financial asset
model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade
services by a financial asset, significant judgement is
exercised in determining the fair values of the financial asset
at initial recognition. Cash flow forecast, effective discount
rate and other factors are used in the valuation model.
Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as effective
discount rate, forecasted unit price of service fee, operating
costs and profit margins of the operating services, will result
in change in the carrying value of the financial asset and the
revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed
with the Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be
periodically adjusted to compensate operating cost increase,
including labour costs, material costs, taxation, through a
pricing mechanism which is still subject to regulation by local
government authorities. Judgement is required in assessing
whether increase in costs can be compensated through unit
price adjustment and the timing. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service
concession arrangements, the extent of development of
the project and status of negotiation with the government
authorities.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group records impairment of trade receivables based on
an assessment made by management on the recoverability
of trade receivables. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. Impairment assessment requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Hong Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet
date or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts of goodwill has been determined
based on fair value less costs to disposal calculations, taking
into account latest market information and past experience.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Key assumptions used in the calculations are disclosed in
note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating
decision-maker of the Group. Management has determined the
operating segments based on reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business
from product and service perspective. The Group is organised
into five business segments as below:

(@) Wastewater treatment;

(b) Water supply;

(c) Construction and sales of equipment;
(d) Solid waste treatment;

(e) Others, including operation and maintenance services and
other businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of each operating
segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company
with respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in
a manner consistent with that of the financial statements. These
assets and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the
segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents,
certain prepayments, certain receivables and investments
accounted for using the equity method of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered
that it is impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different
segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented borrowings, certain
payables and deferred income of the group entities engaging
in multiple business segments. Management considered that
it is impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different
segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. SEVERI(#)
()  Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended iy BEZE—ARE+ZA=1+-—
31 December 2016 are as follows: HItFEMND SR K E
TWTE
Year ended 31 December 2016: BE_F-—R"FE+-HA=1+—
HIEFE :
Construction
Wastewater Water and sales of  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
FRRE #k  HERE  ERRE Kt eI EE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETn ARETT AREFn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Gross segment revenue PHBEER 628,365 639401 1,426,132 425,280 63,244 — 3182422
Inter-segment revenue PHEkE = — (31653 = = — (31653
Revenue & 628,365 639,401 1,109,600 425,280 63,244 — 2865890
Gross profit ] 318,001 119,569 329,886 88,450 23,594 - 879,500
Other income Bt 160,389
Other gains - net HtlETE 8,387
Selling expenses HERY (22,810)
Administrative expenses G (331,001)
Finance costs - net HERATE (220,142)
Share of proft of investments accounted bR ABRROE(L
for using the equity method RERR 16,800 23,196 = = 2,415 = 42411
Profit before income tax B ENER 516,734
Income tax expenses FrEmEx (102,468)
Profit for the year EpEH 414,266
Depreciation and amortisation WENSE (35,662) (60,641) (8,310) (84,985) (5472) (144000 (209,470)
Segment assets THEE 4396604 3,388,706 2256373 3,217,256 924381 5875054 20,058,374
Segment assets include: PHEERE
Investments accounted for using
the equity method NERENRNRE 207028 411,416 = = 37,34 — 746680
Segment labites 28E 534 08912 1242200 87442 3045 BT0BETI 12811915
Addtions to non-current assets FRBERNAE
(other than financial instruments (SRIENETHAER
and deferred income tax assets) EERM 48947 1,979,052 14,828 1,264,089 136,186 5,045 3,864,147

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot R M
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. SERERI(#)
(i)  Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended iy BEZE—XARE+ZA=1+-—
31 December 2016 are as follows: (Cont’d) HIEFEND B XERERH
XM (%)
Year ended 31 December 2015: BE_F-AF+_A=+—
HIEFE :
Construction
Wastewater Water  and salesof  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment  treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER

BRER ik HERE  EBRE i AR i
RMBOOD  RMB'OOD  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMIn  ARMTr  ARRTr  ARRTR  ARBTR  AREBTR

Gross segment revenue PRRREE 420,009 454577 644,183 8,220 78,504 — 1605583
Inter-segment revenue gl e - - (47,189 - - - (47,189)
Revenue W& 420,009 454517 596,994 8,220 78,594 — 1558394
Gross profit ) 207,672 108,507 144,384 1,271 45,788 - 507,622
Other income B 97,552
Other gains - net EohsnEE 12402
Selling expenses HERY (17,187)
Administrative expenses e (181,220)
Finance costs - net HERATE (41,196)
Share of profit/loss) of investments DR ABRAER

accounted for using the equity method ~~ RE'ER|/ (B58) 4971 = = = (79) = 4,89
Profit before income tax Frmanaxl 382,869
Income tax expenses FrEREs (65,426)
Profit for the year ERET 317,443
Depreciation and amortsation gl BISTH RIE @) B8 2y 601 (4130
Segment assets AEE 2,756,951 815567 1192471 2168355 393268 2275679 9,602,201
Segment assets include: PHERAS:
Investments accounted for using

the equity method WEREARNRE = = - S 34,005 = 34,925
Segment liabilities PHERE 610,785 97,156 559,553 584,371 287,984 2519830 4,659,679
Addtions to non-current assets FREEENFE

(other than financial instruments (SHIRFETHEN

and deferred income tax assets) BERM 302,014 67,965 54801 1,419,508 11970 144207 2,000,460
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s business
were primarily carried out in the PRC, thus, geographical
segment information on operational performance has not
been prepared. The table of segment assets/liabilities by
region is as follows:

5.

DERVE R (E)

(i) BE-ZE-—RE+-A=+-—
ALFE  AEEFEERE
FRER » SRV
DEERL KRR - TRET
RBE SN D BEE 8
& :

As at 31 December

R+ZHA=+—H
2016 2015
ZE—REF —EF-HF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T
Segment assets SHEEE
-PRC — 13,289,257 6,799,596
- Hong Kong —-58 26,867 21,384
— Thailand — %[ 550,238 505,632
- Indonesia —EfE 316,958 N/A &
Total segment assets DEEELEER 14,183,320 7,326,612
— Unallocated — KD EE 5,875,054 2,275,679
Total assets HWEE 20,058,374 9,602,291
Segment liabilities TEEE
-PRC —HE 3,819,953 1,918,481
- Hong Kong —-&8 124 115
— Thailand — %[ 206,702 221,253
- Indonesia —Efe 76,465 N/A 11 B
Total segment liabilities DE B EEEE 4,103,244 2,139,849
— Unallocated — R 8,708,671 2,519,830
Total liabilities RedE 12,811,915 4,659,679

Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at
terms and conditions agreed upon by respective parties.
Eliminations comprise inter-segment trade and non-trade
balances. Pricing policy for inter-segment transactions is
determined by reference to market price.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DEER(E)
(i) Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of (i) BEHRBERFEFEEREEN
goods is as follows: Wiz BBAFIIAT ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
ZE—REF —E-5F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AREET T AR®T T
Operating services EE R 747,440 360,232
Construction services BIER 973,360 648,908
Finance income BE WA 167,755 107,979
Engineering-Procurement-Construction RET BB -
(“EPC”) and sales of equipment (TEPCl) kB EHE 914,091 362,681
Others Hith 63,244 78,594
2,865,890 1,558,394
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total vy HXEERAKAERESR
revenue of the Group is as follow: 10% HEFWBALT :
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE-HF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARTT ARBT T
Customer A (note a) EFA(MizEa) 732,678 188,049
Customer B ZFB 431,729 181,271
Customer C ZFEC N/A & H * 162,763
Customer D =ZFED N/A R H * 155,867
(@ Customer A represents Yunnan Construction and (@ EFAEASEENBEHAIER

BEBRREEREEETRA
AREMBLR(EmERE
H])  HEERREEXZH

Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries
(“YCIH”), which are related parties of the Group. The
detailed information of transactions with YCIH is

depicted in note 38. FEERIVIARMETESS
Note *: The corresponding revenue did not exceed 10% of the MizE*: BEZZE—XRE+=ZB=1+—
total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December H L FEMREW AL EBBAR
2016. EBBRAR10% -

EFERBREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

6. OTHER INCOME 6. EHiUgA
Year ended 31 December
HE+-_A=+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARETT
Interest income FEUgA
- Bank deposits and others —RITERRE A 11,038 10,325
— Other receivables from third parties —HibEWEE=
A 7,502 10,318
— Other receivables from related parties —HibEUREER
;IR 5,633 4,552
Rental income HeWam 3,356 3,680
Government grants (note a) BT B (FizEa) 78,979 56,625
BER(BER D)
Value-Added Tax (“VAT”) refunds (note b) B (T b) 49,220 11,940
Miscellaneous income 1B N 3R 4,661 112
160,389 97,552

Amounts represented the subsidies granted by certain
local governments to the Group in respect of the Group’s
provision of sewage and reclaimed water treatments,
distribution of water or construction of sewage and
reclaimed water treatment plants.

Pursuant to the preferential VAT policies issued by the PRC
State Administration of Taxation, the wastewater and solid
waste treatment businesses of the Group was eligible for full
exemption of VAT prior to 1 July 2015. Effective from 1 July
2015, the policies were changed and the full exemption of
VAT is superseded by 70% refund of the net VAT payment.
The Group recognised the VAT refund as other income
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

ZFREE TS BRARAE
BRMTKRBEKEE - #
KRR TR BEKEER
i [E E R ARG -

RIE P BB R B M
ERBERER  R=F—-1
FLA—BA AEERISK
KEEREEBTSEREHE
HegmEER mA=-F

B 2EARHMBERK
B 8UF B ER R 70% FrH
R -REBEZZ-X"F+=A
=t+—BLFE  AEEER
BEBRB A HE M -
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OTHER GAINS - NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

7. HitEHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—F—x"& —T-IF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT AR®ETT

Negative goodwill arising from

WE—MELREEN

acquisition of a subsidiary =G5ES — 12,472
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREE
equipment and land use rights AR & {5 FARERY
Wz (E518) 8,387 (70)
8,387 12,402

EFERBREROBERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE 8. REEH SRR
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-1F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) EERFRZ (M)
- Cost of sales —HERA 129,927 62,728
- Administrative expenses —1THERX 122,269 76,300
- Selling expenses —HEMX 12,114 9,242
Depreciation of property, plant and M -  BMERZEITE
equipment (note 16) (FfEE16) 94,506 59,530
Amortisation of land use rights (note 18) b {5 FARE I 85 (Ff5E 18) 3,920 3,470
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 20) | E EEE (MIEE 20) 111,044 11,137
Legal and professional fee EEREXERM 62,712 22,967
Auditor’s remuneration A EE A 5,980 5,967
Allowance for doubtful debts RERERE 18,362 2,412
Cost of solid waste treatment [E EE R I R AR 93,710 6,642
Electricity, raw materials consumptions and TEKEIE R KR W
other costs for wastewater treatment and B - EMELEFRE
water supply services R H A A 120,751 65,410
Costs of construction services BIERE KA 849,213 553,799
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC R SHE R @A 603,497 265,080
Others Hit 112,196 104,495
Total cost of sales, selling expenses and THENA - HERXK
administrative expenses THAX AR 2,340,201 1,249,179

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES-INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 9.
EMOLUMENTS

BB RRME

EEEFRAX-SEREEME

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&EE

2016 2015

ZE—RE —E-HF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT AR®T T

Wages and salaries TERFH® 199,936 112,710
Social security benefits HEREFR 36,099 18,730
Housing benefits FEREF 9,316 5,442
Staff welfare ETEF 12,297 7,570
Other allowances and benefits HiZRE R EF 6,662 3,818
264,310 148,270

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2015: three) directors,
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
note 41. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2015:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

(@ IEEHESFAL

FEERAFENDTERSH
ALTBE=R(ZE-AF:
=ZR)EE HMS R
ARSI AT - RANFE R
BTME(ZE—HF : WA)
ATEAMEMT AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-1F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXEHe - FRE=2A -
other benefits in kind HitbBY1EF 1,139 931
Bonuses TEAT 360 280
1,499 1,211

ZRABREARBEAREA 179

2016 F 3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES-INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 9. EERINHAIZI-GHEEEME

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) (%8

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d) (@ EEEEFHAL(E)
The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group TEBZERTALTHBMEN
fell within the following bands: FUAT E :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HILEE
2016 2015

—E-#E —T-#%

Emolument bands [
Nil to RMB894,500 (equivalent to ZF AR® 894,500 7T
nil to HKD1,000,000) (BEREZE
1,000,000%& ) 2 2

(b) BE-ZE-—AFR=Z-IfF
TZA=T—-HLEFE  &X&
EMEQEALEESHAL
AR E - FRBEEM
AREH - RIMAREE R
RE > EREBRAREY
BRERAY A -

(b) No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, upon
joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for
loss of office for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

1 80 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

10. FINANCE COSTS - NET 10. FHERAFHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-AF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Finance income REWRA
- Net exchange gains on financing —RMEEEHER
activities (note a) W FRE (M a) (12,674) (25,553)
Finance expenses RMEMX
- Borrowing costs — B 260,525 92,622
Less: amounts capitalised on W EEREEN
qualifying assets (note b) Bt (MizEb) (31,759) (27,785)
228,766 64,837
— Unwinding of provision (note 34) — FRBRIR M (MYEE 34) 4,050 1,912
232,816 66,749
220,142 41,196
(@) Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains of () ZHREFEREBEUIINETE

translating cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies.

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has (b)
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB17,660,000
and RMB14,099,000 (2015: RMB27,235,000 and
RMB550,000) on qualifying property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, respectively.

Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average
rate of 4.70% for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
6.36%).

RS RBLSEEIRIERN
B 34t o

BHE_Z—-—XR"E+-A=1+-—
HIEFE » XEBEREER
ME BMERZREURER
BEEDREREREEA
K #17,660,000t & A B #
14,099,000 T(Z & —H F :
ARM27235000t R AR
#£ 550,000 7T) °
BE-ZZE—XR"E+=ZA=+—
HIEFEE BRAERDRE
4.70%(=ZF—HF : 6.36%)
R INEFITEFUEARL »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

FE MR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T
Current income tax BIEARRS

- PRC corporate income tax — B EFTEH 160,054 54,236
Deferred income tax (note 33) IEFEFrASH (BtaE 33) (57,586) 11,190
102,468 65,426

(a) PRC corporate income tax (@) HEITEREH

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the
western region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues
generated from main operating activities accounted for more
than 70% of their total revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste
treatment projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax
holiday of three-year full exemption followed by three-year
half exemption of corporate income tax commencing from
their first year generating operating revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain
subsidiaries as mentioned above, other subsidiaries within
the Group in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax at
the statutory rate of 25% (2015: same).

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

EHBEREABEEEES
THRNETHBLARAATE
Z1I5%NEBERLERESHRB
x> iEREFTELEXRKE
EMBREAEBRBKE
70% KAk -

R B it B 5 K K (B BE R
HEBRENETHBARNSE
KREZEHEZEEEELEE
WEFEERB=FRRRA
B = F RO I RS FREBE
BBER -

BREMETFHBARZZNE
HEBN AEEHMPEH
MEB AT ERSLSW(ZE—H
F R WEER R HHD
HEBH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project
in Thailand is eligible for an eight-year tax holiday of full
exemption from 2013 to 2020.

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: same).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in
Indonesia is subject to corporate income tax at the statutory
rate of 25% (2015: N/A).

No provision for Indonesia corporate income tax was made
as the Group did not have any assessable profit in Indonesia
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: N/A).

BB RRME

1. FSHMHR(#&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FEIREMEH

ERELSEEREEREEEB W
BAREB-E—=FFZ="FC

SEBAZENERBH

BBRIEH

BE-Z—R"FE+ZA=1+—
HIEFE » EREERSHB
EH165%(ZZE—HF : M
@) e

HRREERBE-Z— <&
+ZA=t—HLFEIEE
AR AIPERBOER - AL ARE
REBANESHBE(CZZ—1
F R °

ENfe 3PS

EHELKEEEREEEN
B B 2 0 2 25% B0 3K 2 B
REMEEFEH(CE—F
F WA -

HRAEERBE-ZS—~F
+ZA=+—HILLEENEE
R AERBURR - AL ARE
REOEBLEMEHBECE
—hFEFEAA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d) 11.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profit of the group entities as follows:

Fnis BB 32 (A7)

A S BRR AT 15 B AT S FI A9 B IR A B
PAMGE R A R SR B B B8 A0 R 9 o
P IBERAAENERESE &
BT

Year ended 31 December
BEt+-_HA=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—-hF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Profit before income tax MRETS B R 516,734 382,869
Less: Share of profits of investments W AR E AR
accounted for using the equity method (LR E =T (42,411) (4,896)
474,323 377,973
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to REBATBANERAN
profits in the respective companies BEFTENFIE 90,596 62,948
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred ~ KERBIELFTEH
income tax assets BEENBEEE
- 9,688 =
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7~ 7] H1%: 58 sz fy /£ 2,184 2,478
Income tax expenses PSR YX 102,468 65,426

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.1% (2015:
16.7%). The increase is caused by a change in the profitability
of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective countries and regions
applying different corporate income tax rates.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

MEFHERABER191%(ZF
—HF 1 16.7%) ° ZIEMDIERE
EEEERR KB ENE AR (KA
TEEEMEHER)NBRIGEHE
MERK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BB RRME

12. SRER

(@ EX

SREARFHADDRRE
ERRBLBE =S —~ER
—g-EF+-A=+—HAL
FENE TR IETY
Bt -

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit attributable to the ordinary AT E B RELGEF
shareholders of the Company (RMB’ 000) (AR®FT) 388,093 285,853
Weighted average number of ordinary ERITHEBRINE
shares in issue (thousands) FEHE(TR) 1,193,213 1,059,181
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)  SRERZEF|
(BRAR®ET) 0.325 0.270

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share as there were no potential diluted ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(b) #8
HRZE-ARERZZE-HF
+ZA=+—BAERITEN
HETHEZER SRS
BREANESREANZFER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT B RRME

13. DIVIDENDS 13. B2

At the board of directors meeting held on 30 March 2017, the E-ZE—tFE=A=1THETNE
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the EESR L NAFREZERNE
year ended 31 December 2016 of RMBO0.1 per ordinary share BEE-RE+ZA=+—HBLEF
amounting to approximately RMB119,321,000 (2015: RMBO.1 per ERAARERESEREERARYE
ordinary share, amounting to approximately RMB119,321,000) 017t BHH AR 119,321,000
out of retained earnings of the Company. These proposed T(ZZE—0F SREBRARY
dividends have not been reflected as dividends payable in these 0.1t GHH AR 119,321,000
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December T)EARARREBRREA - =&
2016 but will be reflected as dividends distribution for the year ZEREREABRBE_ZS—RF
ending 31 December 2017. TZA=t+—HLEENEREH

BHRBRERPRRBENRKRE - B

REBE-ZF—-—+tHF+=-RA=+—H
IEFERRAREDIK

The 2015 dividends were paid on 28 July 2016. —E-HEREENRZZE—XREL
B=+N\BIRf -

1 86 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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14. SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2016, all of which are private limited liability companies:

BB RRME

Bt 8 2 7

UTA-ZE—-—X~"E+=-A=+—H
FEMBATRE H9RF LW

BRAFE] :
Percentage
of equity
attributable
Percentage to non-
of equity controlling
Issued and fully attributable interest (%)
Principal activities and place paid-up capital/ to the (note c)
of incorporation and operation registered capital Company (%) FERERER

Name (note a) TERE, Mt BRTREY KA EHANL (%)

£ (Wta) REZIHE BREx/EREE BRADIL (%) (Hatc)

Dali Water Industry Investment Sewage treatment and water supply, RMB120,000,000 note b note b
Co., Ltd. (“Dali Water’) the PRC AR120,000,000 7T HiEh Mfith
REKBEERERRAR ([ AEKE]) FRRERAK  F

Yunn